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BEx 24/04/2012 500,000 250 251 - = = - T 0.827
N 24/04/2012 500,000 2.50 251 - - - - TEA 0827
fead 2 24/04/2012 500,000 250 251 - - - - TER 0.827
EE 24{04/2012 26,500,000 2.50 251 11,757,248 - (4836,288) 6,920,960 2.58 0827
10/01/2014 40,250,000 382 372 67,440,329 - (26974381)  40,465948 2.54 1.264
11/06/2015 1,500,000 1456 13.62 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 @R 4.854
13/07/2017 6,800,000 244 2.38 - 6,800,000 = 6,800,000 NEA 2.440
Hit (AITES) 24/04/2012 1,500,000 250 251 - - - - TEA 0.827
10/01/2014 1,250,000 382 3.72 - - - - &R 1.264
At 24/04/2012 40,000,000 2.50 251 11,757,248 - (4836288) 6920960 2.58 0.827
10/01/2014 50,000,000 3.82 372 76,009,003 - (35543,055) 40465948 252 1.264
11/06/2015 4,500,000 1456 1362 13,500,000 - - 13,500,000 A 4.854
13/07/2017 10,000,000 244 238 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 TER 2.440
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Independent Auditor's Report
T8 M Rz BRI R

Ernst & Young TSRS T Tel E3%: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EEHIERERE1SE Fax {£H:4+852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue sk E2218 ey.com

EY =i

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Central, Hong Kong

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group")
set out on pages 129 to 272, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

REREREARERERATME
(REBZMA LA ERAF)
ER

BBV HENF 129 22 BEHNBARE LR
B ERERAR(EAR]REMBAR (A
T#EEEE]) WA H®RE - ILEREeHM
BREBENR_Z—tF+_A=1+—H0H%
SUBEMRRKREHEZB L FENGEERER
Hih2EPanE  GEERSBRNGERS
MEX  UREEUBHRENT  BEXES
STHURBEE -

BIRA  ZEEAVBRROBBEET LSS

B A RMmECERMBREE)EE M T
sHR®RT BEEER-_ZFT—tF+_-H
=+ BENEAMBRARBEZB LFEN
FAMBRAMGARERE  YEERES
CRRGG) 2 5 -

RERNER

BRCREFESHMASEMNCEEET
R ETER - RPIEZSFEATAENE
FEERRE [REEIG T 7 & B KA
EHRME] BT IEE—FML - REFES
sHEN A EBMEKEE BT AERE FA) AT
B [FR) - RABLR EKE - YEE
TTAIPMEMERBEEE - RAEE - &
PIFESHMEREE TR MBS AT PR
BTEREGER -
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Independent Auditor's Report
8 N Rz BRI R

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

BHRETER

RETFRERERMNERAE - RRY
ARG EMBHRRNBAR/EENTE &
LR ARV BRRBEBETEMLY
KRERNER TETRER R TLHELS
RRHEBNER - MY TS —FRES
st R EHRE A BIALL BB R ©

BAEEETTT ARE [RHA B FA R ER
BHMAALENEML] BoBANEE  SFEH
BB ET FRAMMNEE - AR - I
B TIERENTRELUTANGS M BHR
REAH R AR R A FFHRF o A
MITEFEFHAER - BREBYE T RERERT
ZHEMPTHRT - RESVFRREBEER
ETRREMHTER -

Key audit matter
REESEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HARETEREETDRNAESH

Impairment assessment on loan and advances to customers

fa TE PRI E B R 2 e B E G

The Group has early adopted HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2017, ahead
of its mandatory effective date of 1 January 2018.

EEEER T —tF A - HRRFHEMEEUBHREER
ok ENRHERBH (T —NF—H—RH) -

The key changes arising from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are that
the Group's credit losses are now estimated based on an
expected loss model rather than an incurred loss model.
RABEMBRELERNFEITNARED S EEENER
R RRIBTAEAE A AR - M EER KK -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit risk
management and practices, and assessed the Group's
impairment provisioning policy in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9, including an evaluation of
management judgement on i) the level of disaggregation of
portfolios for impairment assessment; ii) the use of reasonable
and supportable credit risk information that is available without
undue cost or effort; and iii) the staging criteria for
determining if a significant increase in credit risk has occurred.
BMETE ES£ENGEERREERIEN  WREEFEM
BHRELENFISFHNREFE SEEENRERBRE &
FRHMAAT I ESNEREHE - ) BARFRBAGNREERS
B TIRE  iDRINER DB ER RSB ENARE NMERAE
BRZFEEERRER  Rii) EEEERRZET AIEE M

HIBEER BI DR o
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Key audit matters (continued)

BERBFTERE)

Key audit matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RRETSHETETTDROMESH

fa TEFP ISR BB E G (B)

Impairment assessment on loan and advances to customers (continued)

In respect of impairment allowance on loans and advances, the
difference between the previously reported carrying amounts
and the new carrying amounts of impairment allowance as of
31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 was HK$197 million (net
of deferred tax) and has been recognised in the opening
retained profits.

HERRBFREBERETNS  —E—R"F+H=+—H
R ZT—+F— B —BHRERE AT 2 HRERE E AR
EE 2 MZEREH197 B & BT GNRIELERIE) I ERFEY]
TRER 4 MIRERR ©

As at 31 December 2017, gross loan and advances to customers
and its related impairment allowance amounted to HK$15,988
million and HK$405 million respectively. Impairment allowance
for credit exposures at stage 3 amounted to HK$397 million.
RZZE—tF+_A=1T—H G TEFPHNERRBEREE
R ERED AR 15988 BB BT R45AE BT - £3
fEREERRBEERERITAERT

The assessment of impairment for loans and advances to
customers involves significant management judgements and
estimates on the amount of expected credit loss at the
reporting date.
BTEPHERRBROBENESREREHREBHE
EANEIE S L EBARAE &G -

For assessment of impairment allowance as of 1 January 2017
and 31 December 2017:
R-_E—tF-A-BR-_E—tF+-_A=+—HORE
BfaRrEmS

. We tested the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of significant increase in credit risk and
the basis for classification of exposures into the 3
stages. Our testing included the checking to loan
overdue information, loan-to-value percentage or other
related information, and considering the stage
classification determined by the Group;

. FZMEAR BESEETEERRAESN&GHA
BN REIFERNEENEE L - RIS BIERZ
HEFAREN EFREETS BRHMIERE
B UkEE BEXBEETOHERSE

° For loans and advances to customers classified at stage
1, we evaluated the Group's estimation methodology of
expected credit losses, and checked the parameters to
external data sources where available, including the
price volatility of selected underlying collateral used in
multiple scenario analysis;

. ROELAE 1 RERNGETEPNERRBERME © &
MEE BESEENEBERBLMGHE - WiEHE
S BUEABNINIEBRRETRY - BEESES
5590 1T AT {8 PR #9388 TE AR R HE 1R D (B AR OB IR

BERERERZERERAT 201788% 123




Independent Auditor's Report
8 N Rz BRI R

Key audit matters (continued)

BREETSH®)

Key audit matter
ERETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RRFTSHEETETHROAESH

fa TE P H) B R B R E G ()

Impairment assessment on loan and advances to customers (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and the date
of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis.
REE R - ERER®RE HEYAERBBHRTETF
HANEORRE LT ERONEERBRES B VAR
REAEIEM - RULEE - EEERTEXRTUERAKE
EORRET  ZRHEBELAIEHNAERIHLEY  BEE
KEMER  ARAHEMEDHT o

U For loans and advances to customers classified at stage
3, in assessing the impairment allowance made by the
Group, we checked the valuation of the collateral and
other sources of cash flows, and developed a reasonable
range of expected cash shortfall for comparison with
the Group's assessment.

. ROBEREIBRBRNGETEFNERRBERMS - ¥
AHE EEEERARERER - RMADREERR
EERRSRENEMIR - WIS H AR HRE
MEIREE - R BEEEMFHEETHR

We also evaluated the Group's disclosures in relation to credit
risk and transitional arrangement of HKFRS 9 in Note 2.2(a),
Note 16 and Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
BB AR E M B RRM T 220) « 516 R EE42F7
B BEXEEEHEERREBAMBEREENFEIRHRBE
ZHEMIRE AR -

Valuation of financial instruments

@ TAAMGE

The Group has applied valuation techniques to determine the
fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets. These valuation techniques, in particular those that
include significant unobservable inputs, involve significant
management judgements and assumptions.
EREERAMENEAEETEERTSRENSRITANR
FE - ZERERE(LERBIERBEERZ28E) PR
BREEEHE R RE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value and categorised within Level 3
amounted to HK$1,619 million and HK$2,211 million
respectively, representing 4% and 11% of the Group's financial
assets and liabilities measured at fair value.
RZE—tF+—A=+—H EBEEBERZRAFEFELHE
REIRHNECREERBESAEI16IBERTR2211EE
BT ohlE BEERATEAECREEREEN R
119% °

We obtained an understanding of the Group's policy on the
valuation of financial instruments, including independent price
verification, independent model validation and approval.
BMETH ESEFHeRIAGENEE SFEEYE
BAZE - B AEEERE L -

We focused on the valuation methodologies and assumptions
of financial instruments that were classified as Level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy. We involved our valuation specialists in
evaluating the valuation techniques, inputs and assumptions
through comparison with the valuation techniques that are
commonly used in the market, the validation of observable
inputs using external market data, and comparison with
valuation outcomes obtained from a number of pricing sources.
BHEEEIDBEREIRATESHN R TANGES
ERRBR - BMEIRGEERR - BB TEERNMGET
%~ MBINET IS BUIERFE B2 B LS [HE B R
RESNEELR  FHERERE  28KREER -

We have also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosure
on the fair value hierarchy and related disclosures in Note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BMMENE BEEEEFREATESROKERGE VKR
R 2OERREEERES -
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Independent Auditor's Report
T8 M Rz BRI R

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liqguidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

HHERFEREAHMER

EXEFTHHEMEEAR - HAEERETHR
FERSANER - BETEREFAMBEREIR
BPIZBRE RS -

BMEGEaBRENERE NREEME
B B E A fE R EREATAS
EE R4 l:lufﬂ] °

BERMYRAMBHRNEN - RANEE
EHEEMES  FUBRET EREMES
R BR A MIERR A MR BET P
R ERFEEARE S E LT FEEAER
RARIER - ERBFEHITHOIIE - IARHK

MRAEMESFEERFERRL - HMFTE
BEZFE - e H - BFUVRBEFES -

EERGEMBRRARENEE

EXREERBEEESMASHMAN(ER
B E R BB RGO REEEM

TENGEEMBRE  UHERRRESAR
TSR BB 48 77 F O BKRF S SR T S B
BEAHERRAMFOAIZEFHEER

EREFEAMBRERE - BEAREFRER
i BERERELENEES  LEERBRT
WEREFBCLBEMNEE  AREAFEL

BREER KBE BEAREFEAESR =
NABREFIEE  HREEMEROER
VR

EtREemY BEAREFETRE B
B EEENMBEREBIE -
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Independent Auditor's Report
8 N Rz BRI R

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

U Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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Independent Auditor's Report
T8 M Rz BRI R

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

] Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

U Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

BB BT e M B HRRAEN
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Independent Auditor's Report
8 N Rz BRI R

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or requlation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's
report is Tso Miu Yue, Agnes.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
16 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

[ ] /_\ 3 N\ / AN N/
e EmAEMEE W
Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-T—tF+-A=tALFE

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FET
Revenue U %5 5 3,132,393 2,519,187
Other income Ha A 2,399 2,608
Revenue and other income e 2 e At A 3,134,792 2,521,795
Staff costs 8 T k2N 6 (676,031) (526,657)
Commission to account executives REEERAE (61,947) (55,117)
Depreciation e (38,736) (34,695)
Other operating expenses HthE &= (405,196) (379,923)
Operating profit 4R =S T 1,952,882 1,525,403
Finance costs BhE B A 7 (393,770) (336,796)
Profit before tax Nzl 1,559,112 1,188,607
Income tax expense EREY (223,073) (162,520)
Profit for the year FERFEF 1,336,039 1,026,087
Other comprehensive income for FREMEEKES -
the year, net of tax HIBRFRIE
— Exchange difference on translation — SNETE  =%8
of foreign exchange (1,548) 724
Total comprehensive income for FRE2EWSHEE
the year 1,334,491 1,026,811
Profit for the year attributable to: EBEERER :
Owners of the parent: [SNEIEZF N 1,333,336 1,025,879
— Holders of ordinary shares - EERFEEA 1,228,174 969,139
— Holders of other equity instrument - HiEETAREA 105,162 56,740
Non-controlling interests FEVEAR E 2 2,703 208
1,336,039 1,026,087
Total comprehensive income for EBEEREEKEEE :
the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent (SYNSIEES PN 1,331,788 1,026,603
— Holders of ordinary shares - TRERFEA 1,226,626 969,863
— Holders of other equity instrument - HEMERTEZEEA 105,162 56,740
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE RS 2,703 208
1,334,491 1,026,811
Earnings per share attributable to BAREBRRREMN
ordinary equity holders of SRER
the parent
— Basic (in HK cents) — EAR(ABILED) 11(a) 17.7 14.1
— Diluted (in HK cents) — B8 (LABALET) 11(b) 17.6 13.9
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

N NUR NI

As at 31 December 2017
RZZT—tF+=A=+—H

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
F&ET
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB MR 12 480,006 493,559
Intangible assets mEE 13 2,823 2,823
Deferred tax assets EEFIAEE 15 50,745 3,162
Other assets HEih&E 14 13,174 10,168
Loans and advances to customers BT REENE R R 16 29,918 251,478
Financial assets at fair value through I AFET ABZN SR EE
profit or loss 20 - 51,701
Total non-current assets FRBEEHRTE 576,666 812,891
Current assets REEE
Loans and advances to customers BFEEHERRBER 16 15,553,655 14,286,666
Receivable from reverse repurchase 2 [6] 2] B8 177 5% FE W 3k 08
agreements 22 1,513,177 480,782
Accounts receivable e R TE 18 4,347,402 1,495,924
Prepayments, deposits and other TBNFIE - e K EMmEWFRIA
receivables 19 120,252 151,470
Financial assets at fair value through  EAFEF AEBZHNESREE
profit or loss 20 37,170,762 13,261,624
Derivative financial instruments TAESRT A 21 110,461 122,001
Tax recoverable A Y5 B 77 18 7.495 24,072
Client trust bank balances BPE=:TiR1T4E8 23 12,348,012 12,400,917
Cash and cash equivalents HENIBEEEY 23 2,212,502 1,964,398
Total current assets mENEEAR 73,383,718 44,187,854
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sre MR R

As at 31 December 2017
RZZT—tF+=A=+—H

2017
et

HK$'000
FEx

Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FE TR IE 24 (16,952,250) (14,871,038)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HEMNZTIERETAE 25 (473,094) (271,681)
Derivative financial instruments T/Tifj?vaﬁil,\ 21 (27,722) (130,083)
Bank borrowings RITIEK 26 (13,781,721) (6,811,433)
Debt securities in issue BEITERE 27 (16,363,891) (5,823,241)
— At amortised cost — IREE SR AR (5.885,015) (175,710)
— Designated as at fair value - EEEATEFAER
through profit or loss (10,478,876) (5,647,531)
Financial liabilities at fair value EAFEFABRNEREE
through profit or loss 28 (9,008,776) (3,485,520)
Obligations under repurchase [l fE 1 B 18
agreements 29 (6,244,957) (930,958)
Tax payable FE TR I8 (94,899) (9,695)
Total current liabilities REEERARE (62,947,310) (32,333,649)
Net current assets REEETE 10,436,408 11,854,205
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERRBER 11,013,074 12,667,096
Non-current liabilities kFREEE
Bank borrowings RITIENK 26 - (2,100,000)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERRIBEE 15 (21,648) (33,262)
(21,648) (2,133,262)
Net assets EEFEE 10,991,426 10,533,834
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

N NUR NI

As at 31 December 2017
RZZT—tF+=A=+—H

2017
=
HK$'000
FET
Equity BEFE
Share capital &% A 31 6,118,060 6,054,025
Other reserve Hoth & 35 (1,236,460) (1,236,460)
Currency translation reserve BEEmE R (949) 599
Share-based compensation reserve AR BERH mERE 64,973 88,902
— Share option reserve - BREREE 32 40,769 48,266
— Share award reserve - Bip RE 33 24,204 40,636
Shares held under the share It BEEhET BT TR B B IR H
award scheme 34 (181,281) (214,323)
Retained profits IR & F) 3,843,743 3,482,455
Equity attributable to holders of TRREE ABGER
the ordinary shares 8,608,086 8,175,198
Equity attributable to holders of Hiniees TEFRFB ABGEER
other equity instrument 30 2,346,794 2,346,685
Equity attributable to owners of FARER NGRS
the parent 10,954,880 10,521,883
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE RS 36,546 11,951
Total equity S 10,991,426 10,533,834
Dr. YIM Fung Ms. Ql Haiying
EIEE LT BBRLZL
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR EBE

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2-_ZT—+H+_-_A=+—HItFE

Shares
held under
Currency Share re theshare Other Non-
Share Other ~ translation i award award  Retained equity contralling

capital reserve Teserve Teserve reseve  scheme profits  instrument Total interests

Bz ) BTk Hf

= 7 m
(LS i Fife ) I8 s ‘
HK§000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén Thrn Thxr  Thxr  Thx Thr  ThEn AL TET  Thn
Balanceat 1 January 2016 RZE—~FE-A-H
igfeta 6004362 (1,236,460) (125) 44469 50948 (199643 2960013 - 1623564 11693 7,635257
Total comprehensive income ~ ERZ AN LS
for the year - - 124 - - - 969,139 56,740 1,026,603 208 1026811
Capital contrbution from ~~~ DERFERTE
minority interests - - - - - - - - - 1,550 1,550

Recognition of equity-settled T2 E 3T E MR (A

share-based payments BERRAT

(Notes 32.and 33 (hisE32333) - - - M 81n - - L P
Purchase of shares heldunder B BR(D B 2B T

the share award scheme BENRA

(Notes 33 and 34) (Mﬁn&m - - - - - (e897) - - (689n) - (6897)
Vesting of shares for the bOECREER

share award scheme TR{7 (B3 33 i 34)

(Notes 33 and 34) - - = 34983 - 30
Shares issued upon exercise B RRIEEBIE T 17(E

of share options under BEREMEIN

the share option scheme Tt (B3 32)

(Note 32) 49,663 - - (11,088) - - - - 38575 - 38575
Issuance of perpetual securities %17k BE - - - = - - - 23915 13923 - 23BN
Perpetual securities distribution K BE %7k - - - - : . - a0 (30 - (20
Final dividend for 2015 TH-E-1F

(Note 10) KRS (F2E10) - - = - - - [530) - [530) - (53)
Interim dividend for 2016 SHZE—RF

(Note 10) mERS (i 0) - - - - - - (208359) - (208359) - (208359)
Interim dividend for 2016 TP ERFER

paid to minority interests A= F 7N

mERS - - - - - - - - - (1so0)  (1,500)
Balance at 31 December 2016 N=E—7F

+-A=1-A

He 6054025 (1236460) 599 48266 40636 (214323) 3482455 2346685 10521883 11951 10,533,834
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ARSI EN

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2-_T—+tH+_-_A=+—HItFE

/\\/ \

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

BAREAAELER
NIFIE
held under
Currency Share A FI I FI Other Non-
Share Other translation option award award  Retained equity controlling
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  scheme profits  instrument Total interests
)
#EE
ERRE  BRE RORR BETHA HitlE s kR
kx  Httffe it it fE  NRE REEN I8 it BE RBHEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn TEx TExr TEn Tz T TER TEz  TEn TErn  TER
Balanceat 1 Januay 2007 RN=E—+E-A—A
e 6,054,025 (1,236,460) 599 48,266 40636 (214323) 3482455 2,346,685 10,521,883 11,951 10,533,834
HKFRS 9 adjustment on REEARGSES
retained profits S9RHRDEN
HEZ - - - - - - (220213) - (220273) - (220273)
Total comprehensive income 2N 25

for the year - - (1,548) - - - 1228174 105162 1,331,788 2,703 1,334,491
Capital contribution from SERRRERLE

minority interests - - - - - - = = - 282 2189
Recognition of equity-settled ~ FEz2biERSZT EMRR (A

share-based payments BEBHFR

(Notes 32 and 33) (zF32k33) - - - 1811 70801 - - - 184 - 78412
Purchase of shares held under  ESE 7 BT EIE T

the share award scheme BENKRR

(Notes 33 and 34) (RitzE33 R 34) - - - - - (72786) - - (12780) - (72786)
Vesting of shares for the i emielsE

share award scheme A (B33 R 34)

(Notes 33 and 34) - - - - (87.233) 105828  (23.430) - (4,835) - (4,835)
Shares issued upon exercise R FRIEGT BB T {77

of share options under EREMETH

the share option scheme Tt (Rt 32)

(Note 32) 64,035 - - (15108) - - - - 48,927 - 48,927
Perpetual securities distribution K EE AR - - - - - - - (105,053) (105,053) - (105,053)
Final dividend for 2016 TH=E-1F

(Note 10) RERE (Hz10) - = = = = - (311.380) - (311.380) - (311380
Interim dividend for 2017~ XHZE—+F

(Note 10) R (Bt 10) - - - - - - (311.60) - (311.603) - (311803)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=E—+%

TZh=1-H
igfeha 6,118,060 (1,236,460) (949) 40,769 24204 (181,281) 3,843,743 2,346,794 10954880 36546 10991426
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\\, N Eﬁi L B2 i'%

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2-_ZT—+H+_-_A=+—HItFE

2017
et

HK$'000
FEx

Net cash flows used in operating

REEPIAREREFHE

activities 38 (14,495,045) (6,733,478)
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHRERE
Purchases of property, BEYE - KE &R E

plant and equipment 12 (25,135) (16,090)
Net cash flows used in KEESMARESMNEFE

investing activities (25,135) (16,090)
Cash flows from financing activities TEEFHRLSRE
Net proceeds from bank borrowings IRITE RIS IR F R 4,870,288 1,055,771
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities 37T {ETEE %Fﬁ SEE 19,256,195 7,799,962
Repayment of debt securities 155\5&1,\?1 77 (8,715,545) (4,334,809)
Net proceeds from issuance of THfb iR T RS RIR

other equity instrument /EP%E - 2,329,235
Net proceeds from issuance of shares E RS AR TR M TR D

upon exercise of share options P15 3008 % 58 32 48,927 38,575
Distribution on other equity instrument ~ E iz T B 5K (105,053) (39,290)
Dividend paid to shareholders iﬁﬂx%ﬂx B (628,018) (485,947)
Dividend paid to minority interest X DBREERTEARE

shareholders - (1,500)
Capital contribution from minority DERRERITE

interest shareholders 21,892 1,550
Purchase of shares held under BB MR BEETEIIE

the share award scheme e =R:0):45) 34 (72,786) (68,971)
Net cash flows (used in)/from REES (), B

financing activities RemEFE (14,675,900) 6,294,576
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBELEEYEM

cash equivalents (R4) #58 155,720 (454,992)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHRERRESFEY

beginning of year 1,954,398 2,408,666
Effect of foreign exchange REFN B

rate changes, net (1,596) 724
Effect of impairment allowance on BEBEEHREIREEEYD

cash and cash equivalents, net M & 55 (10) -
Cash and cash equivalents at FRAGKASEEY

end of year 2,108,512 1,954,398
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SFEREmRER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2-_T—+tH+_-_A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—E2—+tF —TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Analysis of balances of cash and RERASEBYNEHRIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances He MRITER 23 2,108,512 1,257,571
Non-pledged time deposits with EUWEREIEETE =/ A
original maturity of less than F) AR E BT
three months when acquired 23 - 696,827
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReMmEXRMIIZEER
in the statement of cash flow BEEEY 2,108,512 1,954,398
Non-pledged time deposits with Bk REIBIBBEA=EH 2
original maturity more than AT BAFERK
three months when acquired 23 103,990 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated MBRARYI 2 &
in the statement of financial position NEEEED 2,212,502 1,964,398
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Notes to Financial Statements

BT R M ot

31 December 2017
—T—+F+ZR=+—H

Corporate and group information

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability under
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and its shares were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange") on 8 July 2010. The registered office address of the Company is
27th Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central,
Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in brokerage, corporate finance, asset
management, loans and financing, financial products, market making and
investments.

The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate holding company
are Guotai Junan Holdings Limited (“GJHL") incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai
Junan") incorporated in the People's Republic of China, respectively.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as
follows:

Place of
incorporation
and business
R A R
TEny

Share capital
VTS

Company name

DAER

Direct

EE

RAREEER

BHRELZBEREZERERIR([ARHE])
RN -_ZE-ZF=ANBREFEAR
EOIETBEMRLNERAF AR
ANBROR _ZT-—FTFLANBEETE
BMAaXSMmARRDR ([BRM]) ERE
e ARBEMMELRN MU BT EE
[RRE T 1815757 4 TG K BE 2718 ©
RRBRREERAR - HMBARE
BRERLEL  bERE EEEE K
RNBE SRER  BHEBRRE -

RRANBEEER A B R&EER QA
DRIANEEEZESEMALWEZR
BRERBERAR(BRELER] K
R EAREMBEEMAZAEZRE %
AEFEMBRAR(EHFER]) -

R-ZE—+F+—_A=+—8 W
BRTMFBOT

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

AAREERER DL

Indirect

B

Principal activities

IRRE

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Samoa/Hong Kong HK$6,330,989,070 100% - Investment holding and provision of
Limited ("GJHK") general administration and

support services to its subsidiaries

BREZ(BB) EEG/ B 6,330,989,070 8 T RERBR R A ARBARRMR
BRAR —REBRERS
((RAREZEE])

Guotai Junan International Singapore $G$300,000 100% - Investment holding and provision of
(Singapore) Holdings Pte general administration and
Limited support services to its subsidiaries

# IR 300,000 7 A3 7T RERBRRAERBARRMR
—REBRERS

Guotai Junan International Singapore $6$1,000,000 - 100%  Asset management
Asset Management
(Singapore) Pte Limited

# I 1,000,000 % A T EEER

Guotai Junan International Singapore 5G$500,000 - 100%  Distribution of research reports

Securities (Singapore)
Pte Limited
IR 500,000 5 MK T B RE
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1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. QARAREEER®)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as RZF—tF+ZA=+—H ' xEW
follows: (continued) BARIMFBNT : (8)
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation attributable to the Company
and business AAREERET AL
Company name HMRLK Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
NEEH KEmY TS B B TEEK
Guotai Junan Securities Hong Kong HK$7,500,000,000 - 100%  Securities dealing and broking and
(Hong Kong) Limited provision of wealth
management services
BRERES (BE) B 7,500,000,000 7 7T - 1000 EFEERELUR
BB RS EER RS
Guotai Junan Futures Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 - 100%  Futures dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited
BRELHE (BE) & 50,000,000 77T - 1000 HEEERELR
BRAHE
Guotai Junan Finance Hong Kong HK$300,000,000 - 100%  Money lending and trading
(Hong Kong) Limited in securities
BRARHE (FE) 0 300,000,000787C - 1000 EEREFEE
ARA
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 - 100%  Provision of consultancy and
financial services
BREZREARLT B8 50,000,005 7 - 100% AR RS
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 - 100%  Asset management
Limited
BRAREEERE (TM) BE 50,000,000 7T - 000 ZBEER
BRAT
Guotai Junan Fund Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 5000 Asset management and trading
Management Limited’ in securities
BREZECERARAR FA 10,000,000 7 - 500 BEEERESEER
Guotai Junan Financial Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Trading in securities
Products Limited
BRXERERERARAR & 1,000,000 ¢ - 1000 HHEE
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100%  Leveraged foreign exchange dealing
and broking
BRELINERRAT 0 30,000,000 87T - 10000 BEASNERSRELR
Note 1:  The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and MizE1: ARAEEERNZEXRBREEEA
operating policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or ZEKE  HAKERREARNEE
remove the majority of the members of its board of directors. ZE RN N EELR -
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2.1

Corporate and group information (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as
follows: (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 16 March 2018.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, debt securities in issue
designated as at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

2.1

AAEIREEER (&)
R-ZE—+tF+-A=+—08  FEMK

BRARMFENT : (&)

ERBINESRR/BAFEREELT
BYEIBUAREEEFEIESN D
ZARBIMBLRR - EERR - JIHE
B ARz EHEBBREBNILE

ZEMBHREENR_Z-—NF=A+X
REE=SHERRETE -

mAERE

ZEMBRRDBREBZAEGHNAE
(BRGNS ) BHOEBY R
SREAN(EEF B REEL ] HBHE
MBEBEREEMBERELER  BEESR

R ((FBGHEL ) RRE)  BE
ARG RAUEEERRHEDIRER - B
BATFEFABSEHNEHEENRETRE
& HERAFEFABENERTE
BEFRTESHIAUNATENE
S REM WK T IRIBE L RRAME S

BRBER TRREVBRRTIAE
TR EMAREENEAATEER
BOOR TRIE

REEE

FEVBBRRAEEE_T—tF+=
A=t —BLFENRRBREMBEAR
B (PR [ AR E ) M5 REK - 8
RARARAERAFERENOER(2
EREBLER) EAEEARXKESR
DEFIE N R ESE A B HIA KA
BBHPIRERRIWEN (AR EEE
BTRAENINETERIREARMHERE
BMBEEN) FEZETEEE - AR
S -
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of
a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(a)

Early adoption of HKFRS 9

The Group has elected to early adopt HKFRS 9, from 1 January 2017.
As permitted by the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9, the Group
has elected not to restate comparative figures. Any adjustments to
the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the date of
transition are recognised in the opening retained profits of the
current year.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting
policies for classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities and impairment of financial assets (refer to Note
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies). The details of the
significant accounting policies adopted for financial assets and
liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2016 is presented in the
Group's Annual Report 2016.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
together with HKFRS 9. Changes include transition disclosures as
shown in Note 2.2(a)(i), detailed qualitative and quantitative
information about the expected credit loss (“ECL") calculations such
as the assumptions and inputs used are set out in Note 2.4.

Set out below are disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 9 on the Group.

Classification and measurement of financial instruments

The measurement category and the carrying amount of
financial assets and liabilities in accordance with HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2017 are compared as follows:

(1)

Original measurement
category under
Financial assets/liabilities HKAS 39
BB RERE9HR
TR B

SREE/Bf

Amortised cost
(Loans and receivables)

BHRA (BRRERRE)

Loans and advances to
customers

RTEPHERRBR

22 BN BEREHREE

(a)

New measurement
category under
HKFRS 9
BERURERE
EREIHTH
M2 ER

Amortised cost

B

Bz E 2B

ki?%%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
9'5.,

AEHEDEEE T —tF—H
—HERERERNB BT HRELE
A 95k - IBEBM B MELERE
958  MBE RSP RT - ANSREE
BAeEdLBHT - NBER
HiEAHmEERABREE
ER 2 BB ERAFE 2 FYR
Bt M N FERR

RMEBUHEREEREIFCE
ﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁ?&iﬂﬁﬁ”ﬁ

Rt ENREREERMENS
BREH(FLEMFE 24T E
AERRME) REBE—T—RF
TZRA=T—BIFERERE
ENBEMRANEIZEHHER
HBEHNAEE T NFFH -
AREE D EREEM RS LR
F IR —HHRAT I B REER
F75 - AEEHEREME226)0)
PR BB IR EE - ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
BXR(EHERABRX]DFENF
AEMAEEE B (TR B ERER
M) #RHiEE24

T X BEREMN
B AL ER

?%Wﬁﬁ 4

=4
4=

TRTANDERE
R=F— ti H—BRiE

(1)

BB ERENRERE
B BRELRNEIFNE

BEENMABTERN MK
EERLEMT

Original carrying
amount under
HKAS 39

BB el
$E39HTH
REREE
HK$'000

?/ETE

New carrying
amount under
HKFRS 9
BERMKHRE
ZRZEIHETH
FREE
HK$'000

?/ETE

14,538,144 14,301,798

rlRARAT 20175% 141



Notes to Financial Statements

A5 SR B at

31 December 2017
—T—+F+ZA=+—H

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

Early adoption of HKFRS9 (continued)

(1)

(continued)

Financial assets/liabilities

EREE/BfE

Client trust bank balances

RPERRITAR

Financial assets at FVTPL
B TE ABRA
SREE

Cash and cash equivalents

ReRALFEY

Accounts receivable

A

Receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements

R [ 2 B8 thh P MR R

Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

AR Ze R
H it 58

Derivative financial instruments
fTESMTEA

Other assets

Hin&E

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

BAFER ABTH
ERAR

Original measurement
category under
HKAS 39

BERETENE 9%
TR &5

Amortised cost
(Loans and receivables)

B (B3 R YR R)

FVTPL (Held for trading)
BRATESABRZ (BEEE)
FVTPL (Designated)
BATERG ABE (BE)

Amortised cost
(Loans and receivables)

B A (BR R ERRR)

Amortised cost
(Loans and receivables)

B A (BR R ERRR)

Amortised cost (Loans
and receivables)

B (B R BYGRR)

Amortised cost (Loans
and receivables)

BHRA (B R ERRE)

FVTPL
BRFE ARS

Amortised cost (Loans
and receivables)

B (BR R ERRR)

FVTPL (Designated)
BATEGABE (BE)
FVTPL (Held for trading)
BRATEFABRE (BEEE)
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22 EERREBREE @

(a)

New measurement
category under
HKFRS 9
ERMERE
ERIEIETH
2R

Amortised cost

B

FVTPL
BAFEFARS
FVTPL

BRATEFAEE
Amortised cost

B RAR
Amortised cost
B
Amortised cost

B HAk AR
Amortised cost
HHRA

FVTPL
BAFE A B
Amortised cost

B A

FVTPL
BAFER A BE

FVTPL
AP A AR

RERNEBYKEREER
E9IR (&)
0 (&)

Original carrying
amount under

New carrying
amount under

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
EREHEN FRUHERSE
FI9HETH ERFEIRTH

BREE NREE

HK$'000 HK$'000

THT TEL

12,400,917 12,378,334

5,366,188 5,366,188

7,947,137 7,947,137

1964398 1,964,301

1,495,924 1,491,409

480,782 480,782

151,470 151,360

122,001 122,001

10,168 10,168

2,349,358 2,349,358

1,136,162 1,136,162
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22 BN BRESBREE @)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)
(a) Early adoption of HKFRS9 (continued) () REEMABTBYEREER
FoW(E)
(i) Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from (i) BABEBSFERIFE5AE

HKAS 39 to HKFRS 9 EEBBV RS ERSE9

SR ISR R B AR

HEHTEHERBXREDN
CREEMS HRESS
FFERIE IR AT E MR E
ﬁaﬁ—ﬁ—tﬁ—ﬂ—a

For financial assets subject to ECL impairment, the carrying
amounts in accordance with HKAS 39 has been remeasured
upon transition to HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2017. The
reconciliation of carrying amount in accordance with HKAS 39

and HKFRS 9 is as follows: BEERBUBREELE
IREEEHE - RES
BT EAENRRE S
Mg E LA E SR ED
BREESEROT ¢
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying amount carrying amount
as at as at
31 December Remeasurement 1 January
2016 (ECL allowance) 2017
RBREBHH
RREBS ]EER
ZRZE395ETE EIMATER
MR=2—RF EfistE R-B—tF
+=A=t+—-8H (RHEA —A—HH
M ERE{E BREE) AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
Loans and advances to customers ERRE P B 14,538,144 (236,346) 14,301,798
Accounts receivable JEUFRIE 1,495,924 (4,515) 1,491,409
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE  Ze K
other receivables H b fE Y IR 151,470 (110) 151,360
Client trust bank balances B EFERITHALR 12,400,917 (22,583) 12,378,334
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRIREEEY 1,964,398 (97) 1,964,301
Deferred tax assets arose from ECL allowance on the financial R-F—+tF—HA—H &
assets amounted to HK$43,527,000 as at 1 January 2017. s mEENRBEREX
BRAMEANRLETIEEE
43,527,000 75 JC ©
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 2.2 Bt BEEBRIFEE @

(continued)

(a) Early adoption of HKFRS9 (continued) () RBEH @E/ﬁﬁjiﬂiﬁ % Al
(iii)  Reconciliation of impairment allowance balance from HKAS 39 (iif) m BB G EAFERB
to HKFRS 9 EERBYBREENE
S5 DRk (8 18 5 24 B
The following table reconciles the prior year's closing TEREYBEFERBES
impairment allowance measured in accordance with the HKAS BRI EREHEHE ELE
39 incurred loss model to the new impairment allowance BRER 2 8RR E R
measured in accordance with the HKFRS 9 expected loss model o BN T+ F—F—
at 1 January 2017: Hiz B BB R EERE
I TEHEEEXGEN
SR ERERN R
Impairment Impairment
allowance under allowance under
HKAS 39 Remeasurement HKFRS 9
ERERS RREBNE
ERIZE395% WEEBE IR
FHE R E R B EFE FENRERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET TET
Loans and advances to customers %5 ¥R ER R 93,828 236,346 330,174
Accounts receivable el sRIA 16,960 4515 21,475
Prepayments, deposits and BNZIE e R
other receivables H b FE U FRIE - 110 110
Client trust bank balances REETRITEH - 22,583 22,583
Cash and cash equivalents BHEeRBESEEY - 97 97
Loan commitments BRRE - 149 149
Total mct 110,788 263,800 374,588
The adjustment on the opening retained profits as at 1 January HR-_Z—+F—HF—BH
2017 amounted to HK$220,273,000, net of deferred tax of %m%éﬁ/mﬂf’lfﬁ?ﬂf@%mkﬁ
HK$43,527,000. 18 43,527,000 7 JT B) 78 B /5

220,273,000 7T ©
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
included in Annual Entities: Clarification of the
Improvements to HKFRSs Scope of HKFRS 12
2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a significant
financial effect on these financial statements. Disclosure has been
made in note 38(b) to the financial statements upon the adoption of
amendments to HKAS 7, which require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The nature and the impact of each amendment are described below:

(i) Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Disclosure of the changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities is provided in note 38(b) to the financial statements.

22 BN BRESBREE @)

(b)

AEMARRATEHBER B
KRB TR IE ST BB S|
%8

BRGERNE IR KEAE

(BFT)
BRETERE 1258 AAEREEES
S-HES) EAHEEE

ERERBREER EMELEn
ERVEACHEN) BE : BEUE
BER=—F—HF EERIE 1289
EoF-AFHEY  REREAHE
R EE SIS

LB B REENNERT Y
ZEM BRI BMEAGTEHE
BB AT R 38(0) (L N IR E
BB ENFIRERTAR) KD
WEE - ZERTAERERERRK
BUASHBHREAESATRE
BETHELANAGEEE B4
ReEREEENEP MRS E
) o

BERIAMMEE R EHPWMT ¢

) BAESAEUNBIHRUER]
R)BREBREREAS
BA 75 ¥R 2 5 1S IART Rl
BEHELANAEES 8
RREREELNEEH NI
Re®8  MERBELN
BEESHHNREEREARY
TR ML 38(0) ©
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(b) (continued)

(i) Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when assessing
whether taxable profits will be available against which it can
utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs to consider
whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of that
deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some
assets for more than their carrying amount. The amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group as the Group has no deductible temporary
differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

(i) Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12, other than those disclosure
requirements in paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS 12, apply to
an entity's interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate, or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale or included in a
disposal group classified as held for sale. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group's financial statements as
there was no subsidiary classified as a disposal group held for
sale as at 31 December 2017 and so no additional information

is required to be disclosed.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 BEMEMKREMNEBHE

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers'

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28!

2014-2016 Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below. The actual impacts upon adoption could
be different to those below, depending on additional reasonable and
supportable information being made available to the Group at the time of
applying the standards.

Bz E BRI

LY

REBHARZFEPTERKRFPERAAT
EEME HRERNFET RGBT EE
FAis RS A -

BB SRS ER M&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ W
25 (1BFIA) RAMAER
BBBEREED é%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂ%
F0RRES BELRZRACEE
SETEAIE 285 HEL M E
(Z2——H)EBIA

BRUBRELER  EFPAME

E15%

BRMBRERR  BEUFREERE 155

F155% (BEIA) EPatMamEE
BEMBREER  HE?

F16%
B (BRMBRE JIEXGREMAE
REZEE) 2B
EWki
Bk (BRMBERE FEHEEZTRTH
ZEZEE)- 2R AE
F235%
7E¢§ BEMBREERE 1%
ZE-AFABY  RESEHER
FEH# F 8RR
g RZE-—NF-—A—BszERBNF
& AR A K
2 REZZE—NF—A— B ZERBHNF
E AR AR

: T A TR R 588 6 AR A L EA R (R A

BEHSERRAKREZEBEEMBR
iﬁWZﬁ—*ﬁﬂmT°ﬁ%&%§

REBA RGN TXALE R -
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016 that address
three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of
a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a
share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet an employee's tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and accounting where a
modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled.
The amendments clarify that the approach used to account for vesting
conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based payments also
applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee's tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions of a
cash-settled share-based payment transaction are modified, with the result
that it becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date
of the modification. On adoption, entities are required to apply the
amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective application
is permitted if they elect to adopt for all three amendments and other
criteria are met. The Group will adopt the amendments from 1 January
2018. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 BEMEMKREMNEBHE

Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.
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Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective adoption
is required on the initial application of the standard. In June 2016, the
HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation
issues on identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition.
The amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group will adopt HKFRS 15 from
1 January 2018 and plans to adopt the modified retrospective approach.
The Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 15 and expects that the standard will not have
significant impact, when applied, on the financial statements of the Group.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 BEMEMKREMNEBHE

Reporting Standards (continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-
use asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates
to a class of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model
is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be
required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and
lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees
can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16
from 1 January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS
16 upon adoption and is considering whether it will choose to take
advantage of the practical expedients available and which transition
approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note 36 to the
financial statements, at 31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of
approximately HK$3,397,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts
included therein may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised,
including, but not limit to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value
assets and short term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen,
and new leases entered into before the date of adoption.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the
situation where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) is that date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising from the payment or
receipt of the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on a full retrospective
basis or on a prospective basis, either from the beginning of the reporting
period in which the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning
of the prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the
financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies
the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that
affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 upon adoption.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, issued in March 2017,
sets out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28. Except for
amendments to HKFRS 12 which have been adopted by the Group for the
current year's financial statements, the Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2018. None of the amendments are expected
to have a significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the
amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28 are as follows:

. HKFRS 1 First time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards: Deletes the short-term exemptions for first-time adopters
because the reliefs provided in the exemption are no longer
applicable.

° HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Clarifies that
an entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-
investment basis, to measure its investments in associates and joint
ventures at fair value through profit or loss. If an entity that is not
itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an investment entity, the entity may elect to retain
the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity
associate or joint venture to the investment entity associate's or joint
venture's interests in subsidiaries when applying the equity method.
This election is made separately for each investment entity associate
or joint venture, at the later of the date on which (i) the investment
entity associate or joint venture is initially recognised; (ii) the
associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (iii) the
investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes a parent.
These amendments should be applied retrospectively.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, debt securities in issue designated as at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments, fund
investments, debt investments and equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2.4 FEGTTBERBE ()

Fair value measurement (continued)
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of

each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its

estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases Shorter of the remaining lease

term and the useful life

of the buildings

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful
lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2.4 FEGTTBERBE ()

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing club membership and eligibility rights to
trade on or through The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. These intangible assets are not amortised. The
useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of these leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2.4 FEETTBEBE(2)

Financial assets and liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date,
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or
financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and commissions.
Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Immediately
after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is
recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and investments
in debt instruments measured at FVOCI, which results in an accounting loss
being recognised in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the entity recognises the difference
as follows:

(i) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based
on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or loss.

(i) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument's fair value can be determined using
market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets

(1)

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group's financial assets include accounts receivable,
deposit and other receivables, loans and advances to
customers, client trust bank balances, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, receivable from reverse repurchase
agreement, derivative financial instruments, other assets and
cash and cash equivalent.

From 1 January 2017, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 and
classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

(i) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

(i) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
or

(iii)  Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments
are described below:

Debt instruments
Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the
definition of a financial liability from the issuer's perspective,
such as loans, government and corporate bonds and trade
receivables purchased from clients in factoring arrangements
without recourse.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depend on:

(1) the Group's business model for managing the asset; and

(i) the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)
Business model assessment:

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets
in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether the Group's
objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from
the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and
cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is
applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes),
then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’
business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by
the Group in determining the business model for a group of
assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these
assets were collected, how the asset's performance is evaluated
and reported to key management personnel, how risks are
assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.

SPPI test:

The Group assesses the contractual terms of instruments to
identify whether the contractual cash flows are 'solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding' ("SPPI"). Financial assets that are consistent with
a basic lending arrangement are considered to meet the SPPI
criterion. In a 'basic lending arrangement’, consideration for
the time value of money and credit risk are typically the most
significant elements of interest. It may also include
consideration for other basic lending risks such as liquidity
risks, costs associated with holding the financial assets for a
period of time (e.g., servicing or administrative costs) and a

profit margin.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payments of principal and interest.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt
instruments into one of the following three measurement

categories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI"), and that are not
designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost. The
carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected
credit loss allowance recognised and measured ‘Interest and
similar income' using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the assets, where the assets' cash flows
represent SPPI, and that are not designated at FVTPL, are
measured at FVOCl. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses on the instrument's amortised cost which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in ‘Net investment income'. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’

using the effective interest rate method.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(a)

(1)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
within ‘Net trading income' in the period in which it arises,
unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at
fair value or which are not held for trading, in which case they
are presented separately in ‘Net investment income'. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest
income' using the effective interest rate method.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer's perspective; that is, instruments that
do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that
evidence a residual interest in the issuer's net assets. Examples
of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group's
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group's policy is to designate
equity investments as FVOCl when those investments are held
for purposes other than to generate investment returns. When
this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised
in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss,
including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value. Dividends, when represent a return on
such investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss
as other income when the Group's right to receive payments is

established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included
in the ‘Net trading income’ line in the statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

(i) Impairment

The Group applies a simplified approach to measure ECL on
accounts receivable; and a general approach to measure ECL
on loans and advances to customers, time deposits and other
financial assets accounted for at amortised cost as well as loan

commitment.

Under the simplified approach, the Group measures the loss
based on lifetime ECL. Under the general approach, financial
assets migrate through the following three stages based on
the change in credit risk since initial recognition:
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)
(i) Impairment (continued)
Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit-
impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL
associated with the probability of default events occurring

within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit-impaired,
a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the

financial asset) is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred. For exposures that
have become credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the

gross carrying amount.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and the date
of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis.
For certain portfolio of margin loans, the Group rebuts the
presumption that there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition when financial assets are
more than 30 days past due as management considers the
probability of default is highly correlated with the collateral

value rather than the past due days.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(a)

(i)

Impairment (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired (continued)

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on an exposure has
increased significantly on an individual or collective basis. For
the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
instruments are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics, taking into account instrument type, remaining
term to maturity and other relevant factors.

The amount of ECL is measured as the probability-weighted
present value of all cash shortfalls over the expected life of the
financial asset discounted at its original effective interest rate.
The cash shortfall is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive. The amount of the loss is
recognised using a provision for doubtful debts account.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and reverses
any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since
origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from
lifetime ECL to 12-months ECL.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(iif)

Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the
contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different to the original terms. The Group does
this by considering, among others, the following factors:

If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows
to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such
as a profit share/equity-based return that substantially
affects the risk profile of the loan.

Significant extension of the loan term when the
borrower is not in financial difficulty.

Significant change in the interest rate.

Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.
Insertion of collateral, other security or credit

enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(a)

(iif)

Modification of loans (continued)

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises
the original financial asset and recognises a ‘new" asset at fair
value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the
asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to
be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation
purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the
Group also assesses whether the new financial asset
recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial
recognition,
renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to make
the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying

especially in circumstances where the

amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss
on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation
or modification does not result in derecognition, and the
Group recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the
revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a
modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified
cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or credit-
adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(a)

(iv)

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i)
the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to
other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards. These transactions are accounted for as ‘pass through'
transfers that result in derecognition if the Group:

(1) has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

(i) is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

(iii)  has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the
assets without material delay.

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions is not derecognised because the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of
the predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for
derecognition are therefore not met. This also applies to
certain securitisation transactions in which the Group retains
a subordinated residual interest.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2.4 FEGTTBERBE ()

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b)  Financial liabilities
Classification and subsequent measurement
In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives and financial liabilities held for
trading. Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are presented partially in other comprehensive
income (the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability, which is determined as the amount that is not attributable
to changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk) and
partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair
value of the liability). This is unless such a presentation would create,
or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gains and
losses attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability are
also presented in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at their
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Whilst the Group enters into a derivative contract for trading purposes or
to provide economic hedges under the Group's risk management
framework, it does not apply hedge accounting.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under the share
award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration is recognised in equity.

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised
financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal business
transactions. The Group has classified the clients' monies as client trust
bank balances under the current assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group is allowed to retain some or all of the
interest income on the clients' monies and recognised corresponding
accounts payable to the respective customers in the current liabilities
clients on grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation of
clients' monies. Under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571) and the Hong Kong Insurance Companies Ordinance (Cap. 41),
the Group is not allowed to use the clients' monies to settle its own
obligation.

Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned above, the Group
provides brokerage and asset management services and the Group acts in a
fiduciary capacity which results in the holding or placing of assets on
behalf of its customers. These assets and any gains or losses arising thereon
are not included in these financial statements as the Group has no
contractual rights to these assets and its gains or losses under fiduciary
activities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2.4 FEGTTBERBE ()

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to the Stock
Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited and other regulators. They are intended to be
held on a long-term basis and are stated at cost less impairment losses.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
puUrposes.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

(i) commission income from securities, futures and options brokerage,
on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are
exchanged;

(i) net income from leveraged foreign exchange transactions, on the
contract dates;

(i)  commission income from the provision of insurance brokerage
services, on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements;

(iv)  commission income from underwriting/placing/sub-underwriting in
securities, on execution of each significant act based on the terms of
underlying agreements and mandates;

(v) management, consultancy, financial advisory fees and handling
income, when the services have been rendered;

(vi) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset;

(vii) dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive payment
has been established;

(viii) performance fees, on the day of the investment funds and managed
accounts when there is a positive performance for the relevant
performance period, taking into consideration the relevant basis of
calculation for the investment funds and managed accounts;
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

information services income, when the services have been rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease term; and

net gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and those held for trading, including realised gains/losses which
are recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant contract
notes are exchanged; and unrealised fair value gains/losses which are
recognised in the period in which they arise.

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees' basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, based
on an approved formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Group after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The Group operates two equity-settled share-based compensation
schemes including a share option scheme and a share award scheme
for the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating
key staff members. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

174 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2017

24 FESHHERE®)

WA TR (4)
(X EERBEURA  REHZFR
TR R -

®  HE2WA - REE R
AR &

) BRATEHABSERBERES
SRAENKSHRFELE
ERRMS R RZBAR
REBRRERERE RS
RAFENEE B EREL S
"R -

EBEEA

(a) ERIKEFIE
7R SR AR IR oR ) 1 R AR 7T B R
Bl RmETE R B R TE A
58 M AR & R KA A EH B (58
BEErEl]) - RIFBTERF A
RAN - IR E S EAF A
—EBEOLAE  YRELRE
BEEPR - RESFENE
ENNBYIERES T AEAE
BHEESHRA - AKERR
e B HMEEHKE  ZF
HREN2HFREME -

(b) TEAT
REBIZ RA A G EIARIEAL
MRAEBLRAX  ZiEHEE
ZRASEBEEMNLELET
HE - RHRESOEETEBEE
B3| B e & TR - AL E AR

€) KRGO BERNL

7RSS B BR A W TE A B £ A EE T A
sEE M (BE—RBRE
FH8I K —IRR ) SEEhET &) - DAY
BhREE - BB L AEERE T -
AEENES (BRES)ERSN
Bin mERMNFRTEANFTM - =
bt EEARERBESERS T
AENRE((UESEHEERS]) -



Notes to Financial Statements

BT R M ot

31 December 2017
—T—+F+ZR=+—H

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in the "share award reserve" and “share
option reserve" under equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in share-based
compensation expense. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification
that increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company's articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Securities borrowing and lending agreements

The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending business
with financial institutions and the Group's customers, under which all
transactions are secured in the form of cash. The Group maintains no net
position in such securities borrowing and lending transactions and is not
subject to significant price risk. However, under the securities borrowing
and lending arrangements, the cash collateral received and cash collateral
placed is included in the accounts payable and accounts receivable from
brokers and dealers respectively. Fees received or paid in connection with
securities borrowing and lending is recorded as interest income or interest
expense, respectively.

Assets sold under repurchase agreements (repos)

In addition, the Group may enter into repurchase agreements whereby
securities are sold to third parties with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase the securities at a specified date. The securities related to these
agreements are not derecognised from the Group's financial statements,
but are retained within the appropriate financial assets classification. The
Group may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair
value of the underlying assets if necessary.

Assets purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repos)

The Group may enter into purchases of assets under agreements to resell.
Reverse repos are initially recorded at the cost of the loan or collateral
advanced in the consolidated statement of financial position. These
securities are not recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position as the counterparty retains substantially all risks and
returns of the securities. In the event of failure by the counterparty to
repay the loan, the Group has the right to the underlying assets.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved) 2.4 FEGTTBERBE ()

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the currency translation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and
that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(1)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

3

EXRSFHE R A

RimEARENTBHHREE  BRER
fEHer 8 ks X BERAER
EE2REHE  HEMBREARIARAE
WER A - AET RRR - ZFREK
BET T HEE AR AR EBORRAH X
I ENEEXAENREEFELER

of the assets or liabilities affected in the future. FHEE o
Judgements |

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for income
and other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, the differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which the determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses as at 31 December 2017 was amounted to
HK$12.3 million (2016: HK$16.4 million). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2017 was approximately HK$8.5 million (2016:
HK$21.2 million). Further details are contained in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all categories
of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition by
comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit
or loss that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
external valuations or valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at each reporting date. Valuation techniques used
include the use of comparable recent arm's length transactions, discounted
cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques
commonly used by other market participants. Changes in assumptions on
the valuation techniques could affect the reported fair values of these
financial assets. Further details are contained in notes 20 and 42 to the
financial statements.
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4. Operating segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the Group's senior executive
management and in accordance with HKFRSs. The Group's operating
businesses are structured and managed separately according to the
nature of their operations and the services they provide. Each of the
Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit
that offers services which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of the other operating segments.

Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(a)  the brokerage segment engages in the provision of securities,
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
broking as well as insurance brokerage services to customers;

(b)  the corporate finance segment engages in the provision of
advisory services, placing and underwriting services of debt
and equity securities;

() the asset management segment engages in asset
management, including fund management and the provision
of investment advisory services;

(d)  the loans and financing segment engages in the provision of
margin financing and securities borrowing and lending to
margin customers, initial public offering ("IPO") loans, other
loans to customers and bank deposits;

(e)  the financial products, market making and investments
segment represents fund, debt and equity investment,
structuring of financial products as well as trading and
market making of debt securities, exchange traded funds
("ETF") and derivatives; and

(f) the others' segment mainly represents rental income and the
p
provision of information channel services.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to
the prices charged to third parties.
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4., REFTER @)
The segment results of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017  ZEE—tF R RNE+Z
and 2016 are as follows: =t+—HIFE ZKEIE’J A=l %ZEIZH
T
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_F—+tH&F+=-A=+—H
IHEE
Financial
products,
market
Corporate Asset Loansand  making and
Brokerage finance  management financing  investments Others Total
SRER -
Hs LERE BEEE HIRME HORRE Hitr b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TR TR TR TR
Segment revenue and PHYER
other income: A
Sales to external HEZ
LECEE HNBEE 517,118 683,526 29792 1288777 613,180 2399 3,134,792
Inter-segment sales DIy e - - - - - - -
Total st 517,118 683,526 29,792 1,288,777 613,180 2,399 3,134,792
Segment results DR 248,736 342,112 9,080 688,573 270,611 - 1,559,112
Income tax expense FEmEY (223,073)
Profit for the year EREF 1,336,039
Other segment it
information: AUWEH :
Net impairment charge BIREES
on loans and advances BB
to customers - ) - - - 74,679 - - 74,679
Net impairment charge W TERE
on accounts receivable Z48 5,297 2187 7 _ 15131 _ 22622
Netimpairment charge/  H 44 BEERE
(reversal) on other Y /(A
o B
financial assets / ' (9,951) - (8) - 72 - (9,887)
Depreciation ik 8,088 14,826 2,139 13,683 - - 38,736
Finance costs BERK # - - 283,777 109,951 - 393,770
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4., RETWER )
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—R"E+=-A=+—H
IHEE

Financial

products,

market

Corporate Asset Loans and making and

Brokerage finance  management financing investments Others
_ SRHES
& TERE EEEE ERk@gd fHmkiE Aty
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT BT THT
Segment revenue and HE kR
other income; A

Sales to external customers  $HE TR 393,000 456,649 28,487 1,297,278 343773 2,608 2,521,795
Inter-segment sales P AEE = = = = = = =
Total Bt 393,000 456,649 28,487 1,297,278 343,773 2,608 2,521,795
Segment results PEEE 85,637 147,602 (3912) 674,450 284,830 = 1,188,607
Income tax expense EREY (162,520)
Profit for the year FREH 1,026,087

Other segment information:  E A7 &5 &4} :
Netimpairment charge BT EFEFRK
onloans and advances  BEHERE

to customers - - - 105,830 - - 105,830
Netimpairment charge ~ FEURFRIENI(E

on accounts receivable B 4 - - - - - 4
Depreciation & 6,958 10,447 1,695 15,595 - - 34,695
Finance costs HAMA 8,848 = = 272,862 55,086 = 336,796
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Il

4. Operating segment information (continued)
Geographical information

(a)  Revenue and other income from external customers

4.

rReEFWER (2)

I 35 & R

(@) SINEEFF Wz REMBA

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

Hong Kong BB 3,015,012 2,380,423
Other countries EmER 119,780 141,372
3,134,792 2,521,795

The information of revenue and other income above is based on the
locations of the markets.

(b)  Non-current assets

Majority of the non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) of
the Group are located in Hong Kong.
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5. Revenue

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

5. Wz

Wes K9 DA

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FET
Brokerage: ESES
Securities 753 430,129 301,318
Futures and options = & HAE 25,095 44,084
Handling income FEBWA 47,966 36,396
Insurance {RBa 11,185 9,134
Leveraged foreign exchange TEIRHINE 2,743 2,068
517,118 393,000
Corporate finance: BERE
Placing, underwriting and e« A&
sub-underwriting commission DEGHEEE
— Debt securities — E5E 350,269 250,249
— Equity securities - REFES 244,920 113,180
Consultancy and financial advisory fee income B[ & @& H 0 & WA 88,337 93,220
683,526 456,649
Asset management: BEEIE
Management fee income EREBWA 27,722 28,487
Performance fee income FIFABRA 2,070 —
29,792 28,487
Loans and financing: BERNEE) EEJJ
Interest and handling income from FREZF S
margin loans ?%ﬁéi‘é‘éu&)\ 968,661 1,106,342
Interest income from banks and others R1T R EAMFIE WA 173,878 97,967
Interest and handling income from FEHEZF 8 &
term loans FEEBWRA 107,035 72,993
Interest income from securities borrowing FBAEEFREKA
and lending 21,545 19,316
Interest income from IPO loans BRXARABEERF WA 12,314 199
Interest income from reverse F 10 120 % 15 2 1) 2 A
repurchase agreements 5,344 461
1,288,777 1,297,278
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5. Revenue (continued) 5. W& @)
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FET
Financial products, market making TREMm - MM
and investments: BRI E -
Interest income from debt securities B FHFE A
— Listed securities - EmESH 200,927 134,066
— Unlisted securities - JEEmES 11,223 2,464
Trading gain on debt securities BERBELFR H W=
— Listed securities - FHEA 30,477 65,855
— Unlisted securities - JEETHES 2,319 2,401
Net income on structured financial products  #&#& 14 & B2 @I A E R 304,104 116,087
Trading gain/(loss) on equity securities RN S & VA Eic)) 37,434 (22,305)
Trading gain on unconsolidated FEREES
investment funds TS5 22,292 74,012
Net gain on foreign exchange HNEE Y2 75 5 R 27,046 1,762
Dividend income Az 2 Ug A 15,352 8,212
Net loss on financial instruments designated TR A FET ABZRH
as fair value through profit or loss ST AEREEFE (39.097) (36,028)
Interest income from unlisted financial BERAFET AEZA
instruments designated as fair value JEETEE T AT B UWA
through profit or loss 1,540 3,094
Trading loss on exchange traded funds REGFMRHGEERHEE (437) (5,847)
613,180 343,773
3,132,393 2,519,187
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6. Staff costs 6. EIWA

2017
—B—tf

HK$'000
FEx

Staff costs (including directors' remuneration): 8 T (BIEEEEL) :

Salaries, bonuses and allowances & JEAL N EBL 590,228 422,047
Share-based compensation expense AR (7 A EE R (B R 2
— Share Option Scheme (Note 32) - BT & (FF5E32) 7,611 14,885
— Share Award Scheme (Note 33) — & 12 E)ET 8 (MI5E33) 70,801 83,228
Pension scheme contributions IRIREET B 7,391 6,497
676,031 526,657
7. Finance costs 7. BERA
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FHET
Bank borrowings and overdrafts SRITERRBEX 310,408 316,019
Debt securities in issue BEITEEES 25,054 6,582
Securities borrowing and lending BHEE 863 992
Repurchase agreements 5] % 15 = 22,804 1,165
Financial instruments at fair value through BEAFERGABR
profit or loss ReRTA
— Debt securities held for trading - FEEENEKES 18,057 10,495
Others H b 16,584 1,543
393,770 336,796
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8.

Profit before tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Auditor's remuneration
(i) audit services
(ii) interim review

(iii) tax and other consultancy services

Foreign exchange differences, net

Other commission expenses

Information services expenses

Marketing, advertising and promotion
expenses

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases

Professional and consultancy fee

Repair and maintenance (including
system maintenance)

Net impairment charge on loans and
advances to customers

Net impairment charge on accounts
receivable

Net reversal of impairment charge on
other financial assets and loan
commitments

ErTE S

(i) == BR AR 75

(i) # ER 2= B3

(iii) Bt 7 e E Ath 55 30 AR 75
HNE F =58

Hib AL
AR S
MEHE - BEEK
EELW
KEHENRERS

BEXNAERE
IR
(BRERREE)
BTEPERR
TR E S R
P& W SR TR RR B 52 v R

CREBEEREFARRME
pgua i JEIDE R

8.

BR B A3

752 BV BR B AT & A T R (GEA)

AT HIBRFH

2017
—Z—tF

HK$'000
TRET
2,292
707
3,308
(26,441)
77.171
25,633
7,973

5,082
68,237

38,800

74,679

22,622

(9.887)

2,046
673
3,760
7,148
65,951
21,290

5,248

5,101
49,347

30,503

105,830

42
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9. Income tax expense 9. FBBiEAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016: BRSO FERNEEBEEN AT
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the JE R FIE R E 16500 (=T — /R F ¢
year. 16.50%) B ©
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FET
Current — Hong Kong BNER — B
— Charge for the year - FRRAX 239,056 154,299
— Overprovision in prior years - BEFEEERE (313) (186)
Deferred (Note 15) PEIE (BI5E15) (15,670) 8,407
Total tax charge for the year FAHIBRZ B 223,073 162,520
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using the EBEER R B BANEN T E 28
statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: BRI ERNERAE  HEER Y
HEMT -
2017
—E—tfF
HK$'000
FET
Profit before tax i 754 Al o A 1,559,112 1,188,607
Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% BATERER 1650t E 2 HiIA
(2016: 16.5%) ZT—R% :16.5%) 257,253 196,120
Overprovision in prior years B FEREEE (313) (186)
Income not subject to tax BARBA (45,210) (53,312)
Expenses not deductible for tax IR 13,524 18,076
Tax losses not recognised RERTRIAEE = 897
Tax losses utilised from previous period BAHSBAEBBHIBEEE (2,082) =
Temporary difference not recognised RIER LR =5 (99) 925
Tax charge for the year FAFRIERY 223,073 162,520
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10. Dividends

Interim, paid — HK$0.045 (2016: HK$0.03)
per ordinary share

10. ®RE

2017
—E2—tF

HK$'000
FHExT
RE . BN - EREER
0.045 BT (Z T — /R F ¢

0.03/87T) 315,023 208,565
Less: Dividend for shares held under the W ARERGEEETEIIET
Company's share award scheme FRFERR 10 B % 2 (3.220) (2,206)
311,803 206,359
Final, proposed — HK$0.045 NER - BRE - BREERK
(2016: HK$0.045) per ordinary share 0.045BTL(ZF—/RF ¢
0.045%87T) 315,256 313,439
Less: Dividend for shares held under the W ARERG EEETEIIET
Company's share award scheme FRFERR (5 B IR 2 (2,781) (2,826)
312,475 310,613*
624,278 516,972
* The Company paid a final dividend of approximately HK$311,380,000 for the * RAARBREHZE-_ZT—X"F+=-A

year ended 31 December 2016, as further adjusted to include the dividend for
shares issued under the share option scheme amounting to approximately
HK$ 1,120,000, the dividend for shares held and vested shares under the share
award scheme amounting to HK$380,000 and HK$27,000 respectively.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

=+—BIEFE 2 REAR S49311,380,000
BT BB {E L ARG AR ERT
E) 38 T AT 3 1T AR5 H9 AR B 491,120,000 7%
T BRDEEEBETHAERERBER

1 2 B& 2.5 5l 380,000 7T [ 27,0007 7T ©
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11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

11.

BRAEERRRELEREA
A

I

BREARESRMNTDHER AT IAR

H

() BREXER
BREABANOAEIENT

Profit attributable to ordinary equity

B AR B AR B A

holders of the parent (in HK$'000) (AFATat) 1,228,174 969,139
Weighted average number of ordinary 31T BRI INRE S EUR L

shares in issue less shares held for R% 15 22 Bt &l A IR (D

the share award scheme (in '000) (BAF=T) 6,923,078 6,880,994
Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) BREEARZEF (CABIET) 17.7 14.1

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in
the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

(b) BREBFERF
Bh#EAN VI R R EBK
BREEFREMNGE - 7 EE
FiT PR &Y 3 3 B N4 S 3 B TS HE T
HERERRNFAEBNFEAS
BITEBRREE  ARBRERFEA
PrBBE#EEBRKE ST
ERBRAETBREDIRERE
BT EBRINE T -
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Il

11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity 11. BRAREBERBRRELERE

holders of the parent (continued) Fl##)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued) (b)
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is as follows:

SREBBERRZ)
GIEERFINESE S ENT :

Profit attributable to ordinary equity ISETNCIES =y A fapaw|
holders of the parent (in HK$'000) (AT L) 1,228,174 969,139
Weighted average number of ordinary ARGtESRERAEFN
shares in issue less shares held for BT E AR A hniE
the share award scheme used in TG EUR L I 10 12D
the basic earnings per share calculation srEEs
(in '000) Bt (PAT5T) 6,923,078 6,880,994
Effect of dilution — weighted average BErE - TERH
number of ordinary shares: IniEFHE
Share options under the share option ~ EERAXREST 2118 T A B I
scheme (in '000) (ATFEH) 25,934 50,718
Awarded shares under the share award R {D 22@) =1 218 | HY SEBIAR (D
scheme (in '000) (BATF5T) 18,991 20,355
Number of ordinary shares for the MEREERREmE A
purpose of the diluted earnings per TBARE B (LATFE)
share calculation (in '000) 6,968,003 6,952,067
Diluted earnings per share (in HK cents) FRESE AR (LABIET) 17.6 13.9
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12. Property, plant and equipment 12. Y% - - BEERE
Furniture
Office and Land and Leasehold Motor
equipment fixtures buildings improvements vehicles Total
BAERE GRREE IwkEF HEYWEES AE @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THERT THET THET THET
For the year ended BEZT—+tF
31 December 2017 +-A=+—H
HEE
As at 1 January 2017 RZZE—+t4F
—A—H
Cost BAR 69,338 3,339 563,831 27,874 2,993 667,375
Accumulated depreciation THTE (47,024) (2,470) (100,648) (21,342) (2,332) (173.816)
Net carrying amount IREF(E 22,314 869 463,183 6,532 661 493,559
Opening net carrying EYRMFE
amount 22,314 869 463,183 6,532 661 493,559
Additions INE 15,898 1,771 - 7,466 - 25,135
Exchange realignment  ANEFH= 30 1 - 17 - 48
Depreciation charged ~ FERITE
during the year (15,500) (1,218) (15,186) (6,366) (466) (38,736)
Closing net carrying FREEFE
amount 22,742 1,423 447,997 7,649 195 480,006
As at 31 December 2017 RZZT—+4F
+-A=t+-8
Cost B AR 85,266 5111 563,831 35,357 2,993 692,558
Accumulated depreciation 2t#75E (62,524) (3,688) (115,834) (27,708) (2,798) (212,552)
Net carrying amount BRI SFE 22,742 1,423 447,997 7,649 195 480,006
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 12. Y% - BERRKHE®)
Furniture
Office and Land and Leasehold Motor
equipment fixtures buildings  improvements vehicles Total
PAEHE HKUEREE THRET HENFEE AE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET FET FET FET
For the year ended Eﬁf—;ﬁ_ii
—H=T—H
31 December 2016
FE

Asat1lJanuary 2016 ~ RZF—RF

—A—H
Cost AR 88,136 4,482 563,831 27,349 2,993 686,791
Accumulated depreciation 251378 (67,364) (3,020) (85,462) (17.237) (1,542) (174,625)
Net carrying amount  AREDE(E 20,772 1,462 478,369 10,112 1,451 512,166

Opening net carrying FRREHE

amount 20,772 1,462 478,369 10,112 1,451 512,166
Additions NE 15,512 44 - 534 - 16,090
Exchange realignment ~ INEFAE (1) = = (1) = (2)
Depreciation charged ERFE

during the year (13,969) (637) (15,186) (4,113) (790) (34,695)
Closing net carrying FRREHE

amount 22,314 869 463,183 6,532 661 493,559
As at 31 December 2016 TN —F—7XF

+=A=+—H
Cost PR 69,338 3,339 563,831 27,874 2993 667,375
Accumulated depreciation RatIT& (47,024) (2,470) (100,648) (21,342) (2332) (173.816)
Net carrying amount REFE 22,314 869 463,183 6,532 661 493,559

194 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2017



Notes to Financial Statements

BT R M ot

31 December 2017
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13.

14.

Intangible assets

13.

HK$'000
TATT

BEE

Trading
rights
X5

Club
membership

2k £
HK$'000
TAET

Total
et
HK$'000
THT

As at 1 January 2016, RZZE—R"F—H—H"
31 December 2016 —E— N4
and 31 December 2017 +-A=+—HK
—ET—tF
+=—A=+—8H
Net carrying amounts BREFE 1,913 910 2,823
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had three trading rights in RZZT—tFR=ZF—-—X~"F+=A

the Stock Exchange and one trading right in The Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not amortised for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 as the trading rights and club

membership have no expiry date.

Other assets

Basic contribution to the guarantee fund
paid to Hong Kong Securities Clearing

14.

XN TEETRE
BRAR([EBEHE])

=t—R AEEHERBRXAN=(E
RoHREBEEREXSMABRRAIN—
B - AR HEREPAEREL &
HEHE MEBEE-ZT—tFR TR
Fr-A=t+—HILFELEEHETY

Htw&E

2017
—E—+F

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHT

HK$'000
TR

Company Limited ("HKSCC") HRBEE S HEAER 959 741
Deposits with Stock Exchange: REEZFTHIR & -

— Compensation fund - HEES 150 150

— Fidelity fund -ERES 150 150

— Stamp duty deposit — ENfER iR e 500 500
Admission fee paid to HKSCC SNTEBEENENE 150 150
Reserve fund with The SEHK Options NESHMAEL ST EE

Clearing House Limited BERARNFES 8,892 6,704
Settlement Risk Fund paid to the SN TLEEBLERZH

Shanghai Stock Exchange HERRES 239 223
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation REBHELEERR AR

Limited k7o 1,500 1,500
Funds deposited with the Securities and REBESLHESHERLTE®

Futures Commission ML & 50 50
Licence deposit with the Monetary RETIK S REIE B

Authority of Singapore RRRIZ S 584 =

13,174 10,168

The carrying amounts of the Group's other assets approximate to their fair

values.

AEERMEENREERE X FER
=
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15. Deferred tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated tax

depreciation

MEBERE

2017
“E—t%
HK$'000
THT

2016
“E—RF
HK$'000
THT

15. IEFEFIIE

FRETRARERAESBNT -

Fair value gains

DV ERE
2017
~E-t%
HK$'000
TER

HK$'000
TATL

Total

@t
2017
—E-—+F
HK$'000
THET

At 1 January ®—F—H (9.172) (8,470) (43,945) (28,456) (53,117) (36,926)
Deferred tax (charged)] RERNELERIE
credited to profit or loss (Zd)/ A (291) (702) 8,686 (15,489) 8,395 (16,191)
At 31 December W+t-A=1+—H (9:463) (9.172) (35,259) (43,945) (44,722) (53,117)
Deferred tax assets IEERIBEEE

Losses available for

offsetting against
future taxable profits ~ Share-based compensation ECL allowance
AR
RERRNEE MR 3 2 L1 19 35 A EHERRXRE
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2016
TE—tF ZTRF ZE-tF ZTRF ZE-tF ZTF ZE-tF 1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR TExT  TEL TEx TET  TEx  TERL
At 1 January m—HR—H 16,441 6,976 6,576 8,257 - = 23,017 15233
Adjustment on FIEBHR
adoption of BEEHF %
HKFRS 9 B H) R - - - - 43,527 - 43,527 -
Deferred tax credited) ~ RIERHRET
(charged) to G5ar)
profit or loss WA/ (Zi) (4139) 9,465 (2722) (1681) 14,136 = 7,275 7,784
RtTZA
At 31 December =40 12,302 16,441 3,854 6,576 57,663 = 73,819 23,017
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15. Deferred tax (continued) 15. IEFEFIIE (&)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority.
The deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be utilised and settled
after one year and the following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

ELERIREE (&)
EAEATERENA AR AR AL ERA
IR R A E R B EPTSBS R Al —
BAEHER - AR SREMESHEER
BEEREE BECHEREERARE
BR—FERTUBAREE - W T HIE
SRABERHEREENSHAESRA Y
Bk R AFIER o

2017

—E—tfF

HK$'000

THET
Deferred tax assets FEEFRIEEE 50,745 3,162
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE (21,648) (33,262)
29,097 (30,100)

The Group had total tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$83.1 million as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$120.8 million), that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets which have not been recognised in respect of losses
amounted to HK$8.5 million as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$21.2
million). These losses have arisen in group companies that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

R-T—+F+-_A=+—8 K~&EE
REBENREBEBENRBIBEET
(ZZ—"F  1208BBEBT)  HERF
ERR SRR AR K E £ BB A RIAER
R E R A o

WER - —tF+_A=1+—B0E
BesEEBT(ZTE—RF 21288
BIL)ERECHBEE - ZZE1BT
HEEEE —BRENEEAREL
BRETREH R T EZ SR
BEIE -
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16. Loans and advances to customers 16. FFEFHNERREBER
2017
—E2—tF
HK$'000
FET
Non-current ER B
Term loans to customers BT REHTEHEX 29,918 251,478
Current Vi)
Margin loans HREX 12,917,920 13,385,176
Term loans to customers BT REHTEEHEXR 3,040,588 995,318
15,958,508 14,380,494
Gross loans and advances to customers BTREFNERR BB 15,988,426 14,631,972
Less: impairment S ORE (404,853) (93,828)
15,583,573 14,538,144
Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December by the Group's RASBERNBEETREFRD BN
internal credit rating and year end classification: TZA=+—HAERERES T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E1REE o FEIMEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal rating grade A EBFEAR FET TET FET FET
Performing RiF
Excellent B 12,229,375 - - 12,229,375
Good 1 4f 2,819,630 - - 2,819,630
Non-performing R - - - -
Individually impaired  {E B3R (E 939,421 939,421

15,049,005 = 939,421 15,988,426
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. BTFEFHNERERBNR#)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowance FREAE R AEERERBEREES T
is as follows: T

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
SRR F2lEB FIER #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TRT TR TRRT

Gross carrying amount R-ZE—+%—A—H
asat 1 January 2017 HERE2E 13,743,727 - 888,245 14,631,972

New assets originated BEZSEREN

or purchased HEE 5,518,689 - 62,560 5,581,249
Assets derecognised BRIERSEEE

or repaid MEE (4,213,411) - (11,384) (4,224,795)
Gross carrying amount RZZE—tF

as at 31 December +=-A=1+—8H

2017 HREAE 15,049,005 - 939,421 15,988,426
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

16. MFEFMNERRBER (&)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
21 E B IR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TER TER TET
ECL allowance as at R-ZE—+F—H—H
1 January 2017 MBS ERBLES (21,854) = (308,320) (330,174)
New assets originated BEZENEEEN
or purchased HEE (2,263) - (105,269) (107,532)
Assets derecognised ERIERHREEER
or repaid MEE 16,432 - 16,421 32,853
ECL allowance as at R-Z—+F
31 December 2017 +-A=+—HH
EHERBELEE (7,685) - (397,168) (404,853)
2016
Audited
—T—REF
BB Z
HK$'000
THT
Specific provision for impairment e R ER
As at 1 January w—H—H 930
Impairment charged to profit or loss during the year & A5t ABZEHIRIE 105,830
Amount written off during the year F A HE SR (12,932)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 93,828
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16.

+tF+=-A=+—H

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

The impairment charged to profit or loss included interest income on
impaired margin loans of HK$52,059,000 (2016: HK$26,576,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, all loans and advances to customers were neither
past due nor impaired as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities
transactions, which are secured by customers' securities held as collateral.
The maximum credit limit granted for each customer is based on the
customer's financial background and the quality of related collateral. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a Credit and Risk Management Department to monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying pledged
securities, bear interest at a rate with reference to the Hong Kong dollar
prime rate and are repayable on demand. The carrying value of margin
loans approximates to their fair value. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in
the opinion of the directors, an ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of the margin loans business. The amount of
credit facilities granted to margin clients is determined by the discounted
market value of the collateral securities accepted by the Group. As at 31
December 2017, the total value of securities pledged as collateral in respect
of the margin loans was approximately HK$49,575 million (2016:
HK$49,194 million) based on the market value of the securities as at the
end of the reporting period.

16.

Bz E BRI

ml:I %gﬁ E’JE &ﬁ (‘/{t)

ABERRERREHZE-Z—+tF
+_A=+—HULFEEREFREER
H B UL A 52,059,000 7T (= F — /N 4F ¢

26,576,000 78 7T) ©

Br EXFTH TSI - R
TE—RF+= H_JF*E
FIEERK

—tEk=
BTEPH
BB - IRRIE ©

FREBEXK
AEERBLFRIAEFPREFER
B UEPHESFFHEERARER -8
REPEENRBEEREARFH
MBERMAFARERRNERAE
%o ARBBRRFHERBERKKA
B BRAR AR I - Iﬁkiﬂméﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁ
PR EERR

BFREPNAREZABEC KRE
BR - REBTREEFRE AR
EREE HFEEFNEAEEEQF
BIEE HRNEZRA ERHFEEX
¥XmME  BRROTIE T2 REREN
BE UBERZERRINT - BFHE
EENEEREBNBREASEBEZMLN
KIFEHFBEMEET - R —+F
+ZA=1+—8  EAFREFERR
MEEBESBELN A58 EBT
(ZZ—NF 1491948 88T) Wy
BEHFRBEHROTETER

wamRAE 2017858 201
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. HTEFNERRER®)

Term loans to customers BTEFHNEHER

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining the REBTTAEFRETHER - RETE
interest rates, reference is made to the credit standing of the relevant AR 22EHEARFNTEEER
customers and the quality and value of the collateral pledged. The term SARFERNERREEZREEB - R
loans granted to customers amounted to HK$3,034,201,000 (2016: TE—tF+ZA=+—BETEPH
HK$1,204,590,000), and the accrued interest amounted to HK$36,305,000 7E 2 B 3K A #03,034,201,000%8 ;L ( = F
(2016: HK$42,206,000) as at 31 December 2017. The carrying amounts of — 7N 4F ¢ 1,204,590,0005 7T )  H FE 5 A
the term loans to customers approximate to their fair values. B & 363050008 (=T — N F ¢

42206000/ 70) ° /A TR HEHE R
REEEEEAFERS

17. Loans to directors 17. HTESENER
Loans to directors, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong RIE B B A 75 55 383(1)(d) 1§ & A A
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of (BREREEFNmER) ROIFEIFAE
Information about Benefits of Directors) Requlation, are as follows: AEELETEENERRBNOT

Maximum amount

Maximum amount At 31 December outstanding
At 31 December outstanding 2016 and during the At 1 January
2017  during the year 1 January 2017 prior year 2016  Collateral held
R=B-~%
+=A=t+—-H
—B—tE FRks K-E-tF FFERRE RZZ-iF
+=A=t-H AEESH —-A—H AEEEH —-B—R BRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FET FET FET
Marketable
Mr. LI Guangjie securities
FRANEE - 1933 - 1,648 364 BBZES
The loans granted to a director bear interest at the Hong Kong dollar prime EYTESENER IS TRERFEM
rate plus 3% per annum and have no fixed terms of repayment. FE3pE - BEETEBERE -
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18. Accounts receivable

(a)

Analysis of accounts receivable

The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course of

business of the Group are as follows:

Accounts receivable arising from brokerage

7 42 75 e W R

18. FEWFRIE

(a) MEWRED M

AEBEXRBBIETAEENER

FIRRBREENT

2017
—

HK$'000
FERx

— cash and custodian clients -HeNEERR 187,406 36,102
— the Stock Exchange and other - B RPT R E S E AT
clearing houses 893,259 712,711
— brokers and dealers - RERZ5E 2,868,570 650,179
Accounts receivable arising from R B 48 40 R 7%
insurance brokerage services FE U GRIE
— cash and custodian clients -BHENEERP 168 19
Accounts receivable arising from BHEEEL
securities borrowing and lending FEMFRIE
— brokers and dealers - RERZS5H 123,444 27,898
Accounts receivable arising from TERME
corporate finance, asset management, EEEE SBESR
financial products, market making i I & 1%
and investments FEW FRIE
— corporate clients, investment -hERP  KREES
funds and others K H A 318,692 85,975
4,391,539 1,512,884
Less: impairment B ORE (44137) (16,960)
4,347,402 1,495,924
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)

18.

(a) Analysis of accounts receivable (continued)
The movements in the impairment allowance on accounts receivable
are as follows:

PE W =R ()
() FEWEKREDH (&)

ERRERERFEZLZOT

2017
—E-tF
HK$'000
FExT
At 1 January »n—A—H 16,960 16,915
Adjustments on adoption HNE A mE &L
of HKFRS 9 9 RAF TR 4,515 -
Impairment charged to profit or loss FRFTABRARIE
during the year 22,720 43
Impairment reversed during the year F R F)RE (98) (1)
Exchange difference bE 5 A 40 3
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 44,137 16,960

(b) Accounts receivable neither past due nor credit- (b) BEXRBHIKREERENE
impaired W
Accounts
receivable
Accounts Accounts from
receivable receivable corporate Accounts
from cash  from the Stock Accounts clients, receivable
and Exchange and receivable investment from
custodian other clearing from brokers funds and insurance
clients houses and dealers others brokerage
BRFAREM tXEF-
ReRAE GEFE BERRE REESR RBELXEK
EFENRHE L] BEWZE  HMEWEE ElsE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAL TAT TAT THT TFHT
As at 31 December i 3
2017 T=HET=E
Neither past due ARSI E
nor credit - impaired EERE 155,884 893,259 2,992,014 218,220 168 4,259,545
Less: impairment o RE (79) (423) (1,151) (110) - (1,762)
155,806 892,836 2,990,863 218,110 168 4,257,783
As at 31 December R-B-KE
2016 t-A=t-A
Neither past due nor RABSMLE
credit = impaired EERE 20,750 712,711 678,077 70,246 19 1,481,803
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. FEWFRIE (&)
(b) Accounts receivable neither past due nor credit- (b) BEABHTIAREERENE
impaired (continued) W IE (&)
Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are B oK #60 HA 75 R 15 BRU(E B JE 3R
neither past due nor credit-impaired represent unsettled client trades ERFAEELRIBERTEES
on various securities exchanges transacted on the last two to three ROGFETRREFELERAI&
business days prior to the end of the reporting year. No ageing ERME=HAEEBRREENE
analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing PREGMPERHIFRIE - HRES
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of these R ERNZEREWFIENTE
accounts receivable. BRI AR EEINEE -
MU AR R AR D AT o
() Accounts receivable past due but not credit-impaired () EEHBEREERENEK
MIE
Accounts
receivable
Accounts Accounts from
receivable receivable corporate Accounts
from cash ~ from the Stock Accounts clients, receivable
and Exchange and receivable investment from
custodian other clearing from brokers funds and insurance
clients houses and dealers others brokerage
LEEF RE
BeRAE  BWRAREM BERRS EeRH RRELER
EFEWFE SEMEWFE HERFE EWE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TATL AT
As at 31 December RB-t%
2017 +=A=1+-A
Past due less than BH=RANR
3 months 17,670 - - 76,949 - 94,619

Pastdue 3to 12months  BMA=Z+=fHA - - - - - -
Past due over 12 months  @ET @AM L = = = - = =

Less: impairment i ORE 4111 - - (15,107) - (19,878)
12,899 - - 61,842 - 74,741

As at 31 December RZE-5E

2016 +-B=+-H
Past due less than AH=EANR

3 months 1618 - - 5428 - 7,046
Pastdue 3to 12months  BMA=Z+=fHA - - - 6,567 = 6,567
Past due over 12 months  BET AN L - - - 500 = 500

1,618 - - 12,495 - 14113
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)

(c)

Accounts receivable past due but not credit-impaired
(continued)

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are past
due but not credit-impaired represent client trades on various
securities exchanges which are unsettled beyond the settlement date.
When the cash and custodian clients fail to settle on the settlement
date, the Group has the rights to force-sell the collateral underlying
the securities transactions. The outstanding accounts receivable from
cash and custodian clients as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are
considered past due but not impaired after taking into consideration
the recoverability from the collateral. The collateral held against
these receivables is publicly traded securities.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients, investment funds and
others which are past due but not credit-impaired represent
receivables arising from asset management, corporate finance,
investment holding and market making which have not yet been
settled by clients after the Group's normal credit period. The
outstanding accounts receivable from corporate clients, investment
funds and others as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were considered
not to be credit-impaired as the credit rating and reputation of the
trade counterparties were sound.
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. FEURFRIE (47)
(d) Credit-impaired accounts receivable (d EfREEREEKRRE
Accounts Accounts
receivable receivable
Accounts from the from
receivable Stock corporate Accounts
from cash Exchange Accounts clients, receivable
and and receivable investment from
custodian other clearing from brokers funds and insurance
clients houses and dealers others brokerage
LEEF
AeRTE BRARHEM BERRGH REESR RRELER
EF EBWEE SEMEWFE EhHE  HtERHE FEWHE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRAL THT TATL THT TATL
As at 31 December RZF—t%
2017 T-A=t-A
Credit-impaired accounts ~ BEERE
receivable e 13,852 - - 23,523 - 31375
Less: impairment e (13,785) - - (8712) - (22,497)
67 - - 14,811 - 14,878
As at 31 December RZE-1%
2016 T-A=t-H
Credit-impaired accounts ~ BEERfE
receivable fElzE 13,734 - - 3234 - 16,968
Less: impairment W RE (13,726) - - (3,234) - (16960)
8 - - - - 8
Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients are considered KEBREMMAO K E R B
credit-impaired when clients fail to settle according to settlement BP R RIBEEGRTETRESE
terms after taking into consideration the recoverability of collateral. B ERREeRTEERFPRIES

WRBEERE
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19. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

19. EMAFIR - REZHAEUYRK

i |

2017

—E—tF

HK$'000

FHET
Prepayments and deposits BRRERIZE 83,374 124,447
Interest receivables FE YT B 36,878 27,023
Total 5t 120,252 151,470

None of the above assets is either past due or credit-impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

P EEMERRTRY EEERE - 5t
AL ERARBEBKENEREELD

HAY SR I2 A)ROER ©

2017
—F—tF

HK$'000
FEx

20. BAFEFAEENESREE

2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FET

Non-current FERBD
Financial assets designated as BERATFESAEBEDS
fair value through profit or loss RETREE
— Unlisted fund investments (Note (a)) —ELEMESKRE (X)) = 51,701
Current TR ED
Financial assets held for trading BEEENEmMEE
— Listed equity securities - ERAES 423,450 335,569
— Listed debt securities - TGRS 7,517,668 4,979,688
— Unlisted debt securities - JE ETERES 601,913 50,931
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTAEBEZH
profit or loss TRUEE
— Listed fund investments - EmESKE 23,249 =
— Unlisted fund investments (Note (a)) - JEEMESIKE (MizE@) 238,399 355,701
— Unlisted convertible promissory note — 3E LT AR A R - 115,184
— Other financial instruments - HmemT A 119,592 =
— Financial products (Note (b)) - 2 EEm (KEE (b)) 28,246,491 7,424,551
37,170,762 13,261,624
Total financial assets at fair value through  3ZAF(EET ABZH
profit or loss SREEBTE 37,170,762 13,313,325
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20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Notes:

(@)  The Group invested in unconsolidated investment funds for capital
appreciation and investment income. The interests held by the Group are in
the form of participating shares which provide the Group with the share of
returns from the investment funds, but not any decision making power nor
any voting right. Given that the Group only held the beneficial interests
without holding any voting right or substantial decision making power as
principal, these investments are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

(b) The financial products invested by the Group included listed equity
investments, listed debt investments, unlisted fund investments, unlisted
equity investments and derivatives. As at 31 December 2017, cash collateral
of HK$567.4 million (2016: HK$845.0 million) and securities collateral of
HK$855.0 million (2016: nil) were placed to the counterparties.

The financial products acquired by the Group are primarily driven by
customers' investment needs and used as hedging instruments for structured
notes issued under the MTN Programme (Note 27) or derivative instruments
acquired by customers (Note 21 and Note 28). As a result, the variable return
of these financial products is not significant.

20. RAFEFAEZENEREE

(%)

BRE

(a) AEEREANKRAHEREESUERE
RBERREBA - AEEA2EFA
ARz EEASEASERERASD
FSEI3R - {8308 F (DR RAE AR
R -ERAKEERAESEEMY
BEMREERMEZTABEROREKRE
ZERENBERBEATEFARENE
BAE

() REBRENSRERBE EMRAE
& FEKKRE  FLTMEEKRE 3k
EHBRABRERTETRE - R —+
F+-—A=1+—H8 GHRRRIBEFH
ReWFse74BEBT(ZT—RNF:
8450 H & L) k8550 A BB L FE HF K
W(ZZE—RF: &)

FEEBACRERIIEZRFHR
BEFREY  WERBETHERE
BONAEBUERE (M) W hTA
SR P WEMNITET A (M iE21 Kk28) -
Hit - ZEERMERZAELRIEX
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21.

Derivative financial instruments

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments
recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. The
notional amount, recorded gross, is the amount of a derivative's underlying
asset, reference rate or index and is the basis upon which changes in the
value of the derivative are measured. The notional amounts indicate the
volume of transactions outstanding at the year end and are indicative of
neither the market risk nor the credit risk.

Notional amount

As at 31 December 2017 R-B—+E+-A=1+—H

21.

288
HK$'000
i

TTEEMTA

TREVTHREERBENITESR
TANRHEEREARSHE - ATk
MEESHEERITETARBEE
SERXYEHNSHE  UAITETH
EBEEFEZEHHEE - ZFREBRAN
FRRAERNZHE - B2 M5ER
TRIEEERBREIER -

Fair value

Liabilities
&
HK$'000
TET

HK$'000
FHT

Cross currency swap RN E ¥ H 1,950,525 1,522 -
Interest rate swap iR 5 1,438,486 778 (10,405)
Foreign exchange forward R HSNE 3,382,001 69,122 (4,541)
Index futures BEHE 3,727 - (270)
Option Hij 1,330,206 17,049 (5,492)
Warrant R E 967,890 9,262 -
Equity swap g3t 988,374 11,687 (7,014)
Credit default swap EEENES 781,630 1,041 =
10,842,839 110,461 (27,722)

As at 31 December 2016 RZE—A"E+-A=1—H
Cross currency swap RX &t 565,243 36,566 (46.342)
Interest rate swap gilpset 370,273 175 (881)
Foreign exchange forward REINE 835,065 1,880 (22,731)
FX Option NEHHE 620,440 - (10,009)
Option HijE 3,368,372 83,380 (50,030)
5,759,393 122,001 (130,083)

The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives Association,
Inc. ("ISDA") master netting agreements or similar agreements with
substantially all of its derivative counterparties. Where legally enforceable,
these master netting agreements give the Group the right to offset cash
collateral paid or received with the same counterparty. As at 31 December
2017, amounts of cash collateral of HK$106.7 million and HK$24.0 million
were paid to and received from respective counterparties (2016: HK$89.9
million and HK$35.6 million), which are included in "accounts receivable
and accounts payable arising from brokerage — brokers and dealers" in
notes 18 and 24 respectively.
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22.

23.

Receivable from reverse repurchase agreements

The receivable from reverse repurchase agreements arises when the
securities are bought by the Group with a concurrent agreement to resell
at a specified later date and price. These securities are not recognised in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as the
counterparty retains substantially all risks and returns of the securities. The
amount paid by the Group is recognised as receivable. In the event of
default by the counterparty, the Group has the right to sell the underlying
securities for settling the outstanding receivable.

As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding amount paid for the reverse
repurchase agreements was HK$1,513,177,000 (2016: HK$480,782,000) and
was recognised as receivable from reverse repurchase agreements.

The fair value of financial liabilities held for trading received as collateral
for the outstanding receivable at the year end was HK$1,726,882,000
(2016: HK$477,335,000).

Cash and cash equivalents and client trust bank
balances

22.

23.

J 1) [2] §% 175 55 FE WK O]

AEBRERADBHEBERS &
SRR —AipZAREERE R B S
RERBERS REEFALERNLE
BiERAMBMRARTER  RERXS
TREZERZSFNRA Y AR ME
oo AR B R IR TR S B UK
e MRS77EN AREEERLER
BE AR E RS R EIGRIR -

MN_ZE—+F+-A=+—08 5xkHE
EEHBEINOREERER
1513,177,000% 7w( = & — X F:
480,782,000/87T) + I R A [ M) [ B
HREUGRIA ©

RERE WEE R AR ETE B UGIRE R
mMAFEEEERABENRATFER

1,726,882,000% 7T( = & — X F:
477,335,000 7T) ©
HERBASEBYREFERT
RiTHEER

2017 2016
—E— & —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances INE NMIBITES 2,108,512 1,257,571
Time deposits EHATZFK 103,990 706,827
— with original maturity of less than - REEAH
three months D=8 A - 696,827
— with original maturity of more than - REIEAR
three months BiE=1"A 103,990 10,000
2,212,502 1,964,398
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23. Cash and cash equivalents and client trust bank 23. BERBESE/BYREF ST

balances (continued) RiT&ER )
2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FHET
Denominated in: RATMETERE -
HK$ HTT 848,408 909,649
us$ ETT 1,318,025 631,519
RMB N 27,195 412,704
Others Hh 18,874 10,526
2,212,502 1,964,398
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit BITERERTARITERFRIZZE
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between =R - MHE B RN T
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements —HAE=@A  BAKENNKE S
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit KM E » MR A8 R RS HA E HR 17 KR R 5T
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no B RITHEBREFAGERIFAERK
history of default. L RERITH -
As at 31 December 2017, the ECL allowance of cash and cash equivalents RZBE—+tF+-_A=+—H K&k
and client trust bank balances amounted to HK$10,000 and HK$12,931,000 ReEBYRELERITEAHNTER
respectively. Both of them are classified as Stage 1 under the ECL model EABXEESD B A10000% T &
and there was no transfer to/from the other stages. 12,931,000/8 7T * ¥R T BR(E 1B AR AL

ENEF1IRER BYREBA EBEH
fll i B
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24. Accounts payable

24, ENFIE

2017
—E—+tfF
HK$'000
FET
Accounts payable arising from brokerage AR A0 TS TR FRIE
— clients =%2E 13,128,476 12,641,212
— brokers and dealers - BERZF5E 1,895,561 270,374
— the Stock Exchange and other — B P R
clearing houses Hth A E AT 374,634 239,687
Accounts payable arising from securities BEEEEK
borrowing and lending FE{ 3R 1,479,445 400,853
Accounts payable arising from corporate TrERE  BEEER -
finance, asset management, EREM MM  REFEK
financial products, market making, Ko EL At & < 5018
investments and others 72,857 1,318,284
Accounts payable arising from insurance R B A 40 FETE
brokerage services FERTFIE 1,277 628
16,952,250 14,871,038

The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand except for
certain accounts payable to clients which represent margin deposits
received from clients for their trading activities in the normal course of
business. Only the excess amounts over the required margin deposits

stipulated are repayable on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment within one
business day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the

nature of these businesses.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust accounts
with authorised institutions of HK$12,348 million (2016: HK$12,400
million), Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited and
other futures dealers of HK$274 million (2016: HK$432 million).

Accounts payable arising from insurance brokerage services include those
payables in trust accounts with authorised institutions of HK$1,277,000
(2016: HK$628,000). Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing, except for
the accounts payable to clients.

AEB FET SRR A FR AN BSREFEIE -
HETENTEFPHNKBESREFRIE
FEBBRETPETEELIGERE,DN
REZBRN  RABHAERESHE
HARERBHERP -

AEBERE-—ELEXBNBERERN
RER - AREWERBEREDNT - R
AREEEEIZEXHNME - Rk
DT T ERHEBEIMEE

BT8P R RIE TN IET7 B 58 7] 4
BETLRFN12348BBEB T (ZE—X
F 124005 EBL)  BEHELESR
RARREMBERZEE R 274 E
BIL(ZE—RF 42888 T) °

RO EBENFRERERATKERS
FEER P B 50 E 1,277,000 T (= F
— 74 6280008 TT) - RIEFRTE PR
BN - B FIBHRELE o
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25. Other payables and accrued liabilities 25.

HttENRERESAE

2017
—E2—tF

HK$'000
FEx

Other payables H th fE 5 FR0E 129,342 32,413
Accrued liabilities FEstEE 343,752 239,268
473,094 271,681

Other payables and accrued liabilities are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

26. Bank borrowings 26.

Hitp BN EABETTS  EF
BHRA3EA -

RITER

—ZE—tF
HK$'000
FExT
Non-current: B -
Unsecured bank borrowings AR IRITE X - 2,100,000
Current: T :
Unsecured bank borrowings EHRIRITIE 13,781,721 6,811,433
Total bank borrowings RITIE B 13,781,721 8,911,433

2017 2016
—E—t5 TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Denominated in: AT A :
HK$ BT 13,195,498 7,244,000
Us$ ETT 586,223 1,667,433
13,781,721 8,911,433

The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered Rate
plus an interest spread. Except for the non-current bank borrowings
amounting to nil amount (2016: HK$2,100 million) which were repayable in
one to three years, the bank borrowings were repayable within three
months or less at the end of reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their fair
values as the impact on discounting is not significant.
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27. Debt securities in issue

27. ERTEXKRS

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FET
At amortised cost (Note(a)): R SHA AR (M RE (3))
Listed unsecured medium-term notes B _EER AT B 3,126,887 =
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes JE E T ER AR B 2,758,128 175,710
Designated as fair value through EER AT E AERR :
profit or loss:
Structured notes issued in relation to BETHNE/MERER
financial products (Note (b)) EBMEERE (M3 (0) 10,478,876 5,647,531
16,363,891 5,823,241
Unsecured medium-term notes BT S’ (B K E R
denominated in: PSR
us$ ETT 4,018,976 =
HK$ BT 1,866,039 64,400
RMB AR - 111,310
5,885,015 175,710
Structured notes issued in relation to BT EEENSZETH
financial products denominated in: TRUE B 2 ABILERE
EUR BT 133,771 -
HK$ BT 963,892 241,955
us$ ETT 7,798,718 4,220,557
RMB AR 1,582,495 1,185,019
10,478,876 5,647,531
16,363,891 5,823,241
Notes: MIEE -

The outstanding balance of HK$5,885.0 million (2016: HK$175.7 million)
stated at amortised cost represents unsecured notes issued by the Company
under the Company's Medium Term Note Programme (the "MTN Programme").
As at 31 December 2017, the debt securities in issue bore fixed interest rates
ranging from 0.9% to 2.8% (2016: 0.9% to 4.1%). The carrying amounts of
the debt securities in issue approximate to their fair values as the impact on
discounting is not significant.

The outstanding balance of HK$10,479 million (2016: HK$5,648 million)
represented unlisted structured notes which arose from selling structured
products under the MTN Programme with underlying investments related to
listed equity investments, listed debt investments and unlisted fund
investments.

R R A R KBRS EE58850 F
EBET(ZE—R"F157BEBT)IE
RARBIRARR AP HAZ R 21 ([ HA
R D BTHEBRER - K2
—tFE+-A=+—H8 BEITELZ
3% [E 7E FI) 2R 0.9% Z 2.80% (=T — /N6 ¢
09% % 4.10%) 5+ 8 ° AR EBRM T EY
TR BETEESFOEAERLR
FEMRE -

REBRBI049BEAT(ZT—RF :
5648 B EBT) B IBIE R BAZ BT BIHE
ERERELAMNELMABEEE A
BIRER FTRARE - EMEBKRE
RIFELTESEEREA -
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27. Debt securities in issue (continued) 27.

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches
with respect to their liabilities during the year (2016: Nil).

The debt securities in issue are repayable on demand and the Group has a
practice to satisfy the request for redemption on the settlement date.

ERITEBEREZ @)

ARERERLJERETES - 718
Ak BITREENER(ZE—A
o) .

ERTEBIFRRBREE ML
EEPAEENAMREEEER -

28. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 28. AV EFABZNESHERS
loss
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FET
Financial liabilities held for trading: BIEEEMSmAE
— Listed equity securities - EHERARE 5 6,634 66
— Listed debt securities - FEBES 1,573,357 1,136,096
Financial liabilities designated as at EEEATEE ABZRED
fair value through profit or loss SRBE
— Financial products (Note) - & @E R (KEE) 7,428,785 2,349,358
9,008,776 3,485,520
Note: Included in the fair value of financial products were cash collaterals of Mz : eMEMZATEBELHFH KDY
HK$2,177 million (2016: HK$1,686 million) received from the counterparty. BEWBER2177BABB L (ZE—RF:
1,686 AEBTT) °
29. Obligations under repurchase agreements 29. EIEEHERMNER

The obligations under repurchase agreements arise when the securities are
sold by the Group with a concurrent agreement to repurchase at a specified
later date and price. These securities are not derecognised from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position and are retained within the
appropriate financial assets classification. The amount received by the
Group is recognised as liabilities as the Group retains substantially all risks
and returns of the securities.

As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding amount received from repurchase

agreements was HK$6,244,957,000 (2016: HK$930,958,000) and was
recognised as obligations under repurchase agreements.
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29. Obligations under repurchase agreements (continued)
The following table specifies the amount included within financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss subject to repurchase agreements at the
year end (Note 20).

29. BIEHENEE @)

TREFRERE DA EFABENS
Bl E EE R 52 0 BE 1p s R PR 0 3OE (BT A
20) °

2017
Bt

HK$'000

FIEEENESREE

Financial assets held for trading

TR

— Listed debt securities - FEBES 3,413,827 110,460
— Unlisted debt securities - LTHERES 228,758 67,759
Financial assets designated as fair value BERAFEGT AEBTZA
through profit or loss EREE
— Financial products - S EE @ 4,443,574 1,224,306
8,086,159 1,402,525

30. Other equity instrument

On 15 June 2016, the Company issued US$300 million subordinated
perpetual securities (the “Perpetual Securities”) with an initial distribution
rate of 4.59% per annum. Distributions are paid semi-annually in arrears and
the first distribution date was 30 October 2016. The Company may, at its
sole discretion, elect to defer any distribution. The Perpetual Securities do
not have a maturity date and are only callable at the Company's discretion
on 30 April 2019 or on any distribution payment date after 30 April 2019.
After 30 April 2019, the distribution rate will be reset to the 3-year US
swap rate plus 8% per annum. The Perpetual Securities constitute direct,
unconditional, subordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company
and are classified as equity instruments and recorded as equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The amount as at 31
December 2017 included accrued distribution payment.

30. HihigExRTH

R-ZE—RFANATHR  NAFET
fEETTHRAUKER S ([ KEES])
A5 Ik R REF K 450 « DI NEF
FHARARIN BRDEKEER_-ZE
—RNETRA=1TH- - ARAAEERTT
BEBIEEEA DR - k&R H I EDH
BEARRBEARZZE—NFOA=T
B —ZE-NFOA=THRNEMNS
KX BEBITER . —Z—HFWMA
=tHRR&R DIRERERR/=FHET
= BRI I % 8op o KBFEFEHAR
AMER EBEM REREEREA
- YHERERTIE  REa B
MEPEFEEER  —E—EF+ R
=t —BNESBEERRE D IRNR
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31. Share capital

31. A&

Number of
issued and
fully paid Share
shares capital
EBTR
BERGHE BR A
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 6,934,308,201 6,004,362
Shares issued upon exercise of share options  BEAXAE =t 2178 T 176 BB AL
under the share option scheme (Note 32) M EITHRR () (M EE32) 30,992,941 49,663
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZE—RE+-_A=1+—H8BK
—2—+¥—H—H 6,965,301,142 6,054,025
Shares issued upon exercise of share options  BEAXAE =T 2178 T 17 BB AL iE
under the share option scheme (Note 32) i #1TRI AR (M4 3E 32) 40,379,343 64,035
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+tF+-_A=+—H 7,005,680,485 6,118,060
32. Share option reserve 32. BRERE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the "Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff
members. The Board of Directors has the discretion to grant share options
to employees and directors of any members of the Group, including
independent non-executive directors. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date (i.e., 18 June 2020).

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 164,000,000 shares). The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time (i.e.
16,400,000 shares). Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders' approval in a general meeting.
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BRERE R

32. Share option reserve (continued) 32.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company, or
to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.19% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders' approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and ends on a date which is not later than
ten years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company's shares on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

On 13 July 2017, the Company granted 10,000,000 share options at the
exercise price of HK$2.44 per share to its directors and employees under
the Share Option Scheme. Among the share options granted, 3,200,000
share options were granted to the director of the Company. The option
period of the share options is from 13 July 2017 to 12 July 2027. Every
one-third of the share options granted will be vested on the first, second
and third anniversaries of the date of grant respectively. The closing price
of the Company's shares prior to the date of grant (i.e,, 12 July 2017) was
HK$2.38 per share.

The fair value of the equity-settled share options was estimated on the
date of grant using a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
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32. Share option reserve (continued)

The following table lists out the key inputs to the model used for the share

options granted in 2017:

Share price at the date of grant (per share) HK$2.44
Exercise price (per share) HK$2.44
Expected volatility 53.32%
Expected dividend yield 3.07%
Risk-free interest rate 1.44%
Weighted average share option price (per share) HK$1.11

The expected volatility and the expected dividend yield reflect the
assumptions that the historical volatility and the historical dividend vyield,
respectively, are indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be
the actual outcome.

Upon completion of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the exercise price and
the number of shares to be issued and allotted under the outstanding share
options had been adjusted pursuant to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme in the manner set out below:

Immediately before the completion
of the bonus issue

SEARBITTRA

Number of

Exercise price outstanding

Date of share options granted per share options

RITHEE

RHBREN B BRITHEE BRENEE

24(4/2012 HK$2.48 4,856,448
24878 7T

10/1/2014 HK$3.79 36,959,910
379787

11/6/2015 HK$14.56 4,500,000
14.56 /87T

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders' meetings.

40,379,343 share options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: 30,992,941 share options), resulting in the issue of
40,379,343 shares (2016: 30,992,941 shares) for a total cash consideration
of HK$48,926,000 (2016: HK$38,575,000). An amount of HK$15,108,000
(2016: HK$11,088,000) was transferred from the share option reserve to
the share capital account upon the exercise of the share options. After
adjustment for the bonus issue, the weighted average share price at the
date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was HK$2.51
per share (2016: HK$2.57).
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Immediately after the
completion of the bonus issue

FEARBTTHARBEARBITRRE

Adjusted number
Adjusted exercise of outstanding
price per share options
AR REEART
BRITHEE ERRENEE
HK$0.827 14,569,344
0.827 7T
HK$1.264 110,879,730
1.264 87T
HK$4.854 13,500,000
48548 7T
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32. Share option reserve (continued) 32.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, GJIHL has recognised an equity-
settled share-based compensation expense of HK$7,611,000 for the share
options under the Share Option Scheme in profit or loss (2016:
HK$14,885,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2017, no share option was lapsed or
forfeited (2016: 1,007,915 share options with an exercise price of HK$1.264
each were lapsed) prior to the vesting date as a result of staff resignation.

BRERE R

HE-_ZT—+tHF+-_A=t+—HLHF
B BRELEEERE RERES
BN BRI S R A e A B 1A
I BB R (E R 2 7,611,000 7T ( =
T —7X4F 14,885,000 7T ) °

HE-_ZT—+t&#+-_A=+—B1tHF
B WEBREHNESFRBMNEE
HEBRT R R (=T — R F « 17fF
B A% 1.264 75 7T #9 1,007,915 17 BE A% 1
KK o

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
HK$ per share options  HKS$ per share options

IR E pilll: B EGRES
EekErT BRERE BERET EREHE
At 1 January ®—HA—H 1.692 101,266,251 1.585 133,267,107
Granted during the year ~ F AKX H 2.440 10,000,000 = =

Adjusted during the year G A =
Forfeited during the year R38R Uk -

Lapsed during the year FRRM - - 1.264 (1,007,915)
Exercised during the year HFRAFT{E 1.212 (40,379,343) 1.246 (30,992,941)
At 31 December WNt+—_B=+—H 2.071 70,886,908 1.692 101,266,251

At 31 December 2017, the Company had 70,886,908 (2016: 101,266,251)
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represents approximately 1.01% (2016: 1.45%) of the Company's shares in
issue as at 31 December 2017. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 70,886,908 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$146,802,000 (before issuance expenses). The
option periods of the share options are from 24 April 2012 to 9 June 2021,
from 10 January 2014 to 9 January 2024, from 11 June 2015 to 10 June
2025 and from 13 July 2017 to 12 July 2027.

R-ZT—+F+-_A=+—8 AQA
570,886,908 10 (ZZF —7<4F : 101,266,251
12 BEAR MR T BITE T M R TR A REARAE -
HMARRR=_E—+F+=—A=+—H
EBETRME L1010 ZF—NF:
1.450) o IRIFAR QR H AT E ANZRHE
AERBREREITE  SEIEIE
770,886,908 & AN A B AK - LA K EEAD
P& 146,802,000 7 7T (RINBRBEITH ) ©
Bl ENETFERAR AT ——F W
AZ+WHBEZE=ZE=_—FANA =
E—ME—A+HE-Z-_WE—Fh
H - —Z—aFA+—BE=ZZT=-H
EFXNAtER-_E—+E+LA+=HZE
T+ F+A+=H-
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33. Share award reserve

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme") under which shares of the Company (the "Awarded
Shares") may be awarded to selected employees (including directors) of any
members of the Group (the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to the terms of
the scheme rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The share
award scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date,
i.e., 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share
Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the adoption date (i.e. 164,000,000 shares). The maximum number of
the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee in any
12-month period up to and including the date of award shall not in
aggregate exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date (i.e. 16,400,000 shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might
include service and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of
Directors of the Company at the time of making the award and become
entitled to the shares of the Company forming the subject of the award,
the trustee shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares to that employee at
no cost.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share Award
Scheme shall be exercised by the independent trustee who shall abstain
from voting.
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33. Share award reserve (continued) 33. RPEBRE®

R-E—+F+-_A=+—BEEIX
FREAEEROMFBHIET

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 31 December
2017 are set out below:

Number of Number of Number of Number of
Date of Awarded Average fair Awarded Awarded Awarded Awarded
Shares granted value per share  Shares granted Shares vested Shares lapsed Shares unvested Vesting dates
RUERBRG RERB EEREB BRMER AEBRB
#9 B 58 BRYEQATE ROHHE g0k ¢=) g ok ¢ RO HHA
18/4/2016 HK$2.79 27,987,000 (18,894,000) (1,007,000) 7,612,000 30/11/2018
27978 58,000 4/10/2018
208,000 31/3/2018
208,000 31/3/2019
13/4/2017 HK$2.44 26,628,000 (9,781,000) (840,000) 8,016,000 30/11/2018
244 TT 7,991,000 30/11/2019

The Group has recognised a share-based compensation expense of
HK$70,801,000 for the Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme in
profit or loss (2016: HK$81,272,000). 30,550,000 Awarded Shares have
been either transferred to the grantees or sold in accordance with their
instructions at no cost (2016: 38,409,000 Awarded Shares) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

1,309,000 Awarded Shares lapsed prior to their vesting date as a result of
staff resignation for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 1,141,000
Awarded Shares).

After considering the number of shares which were granted in prior years,
as at 31 December 2017, the total number of the Awarded Shares that can
be awarded was 72,185,000 which represent appropriately 1.03% of the
Company's shares in issue as at 31 December 2017.

REE B RGN RENFT B8 T A SRE AR
MRIBRERARD AERNHERZ
70,801,000 7T (=& — 73 4F : 81,272,000
BIL) BEZE—+Ft+-A=1+—
B 1L » 30,550,000 A% EEEI L) D IR E
AN EEE T AR AR IBE R SR ERTE
B (= — /N F 1 38,409,000 f% 2 Fh i%
) °

HE-_ZT—+t&E+-_A=1+—BLHF
€ B E TEB - 1,309,000 22 B A%
P (=T — N4 1,141,000 I 22 B AR 19)
AERE B HART R K -

KERBAFEMBRLZ2ROHEE - R
—T—+F+_A=+—8 " "#E7E
B /9 2R AR (7 48 205 72,185,000 %+ #91E
RARARR=ZE—tF+-A=+—HE
BTN HY 1.03% ©
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34. Shares held under the Share Award Scheme

Movements of shares held under the Share Award Scheme during the year
are as follows:

34.

R p RBEETEIE T FENRE

Rt SR =T BIIE T A AR R F N
HEMT

2017
—E—tF

Number of Number of

HK$' 000 shares HK$' 000 shares

FET B4 &E AT D& B

At 1 January Hn—HA—H 214,323 62,804,400 199,643 76,929,400
Purchased during the year RERNEE 72,786 29,546,000 68,971 24,284,000

Vested and transferred out FASE N 63 /8 ok 8 1

during the year (105,828) (30,550,000) (54,291) (38,409,000)
At 31 December WNt+=-—RA=+—H 181,281 61,800,400 214,323 62,804,400
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the trustee acquired 29,546,000 REBEE-_ET—+F+=-A=+—81F

ordinary shares (2016: 24,284,000 ordinary shares) of the Company for the
Share Award Scheme through purchases in the open market, at a total cost,
including related transaction costs of approximately HK$72,786,000 (2016:
HK$68,971,000).

35. Reserves
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 represents a
merger reserve, being the difference between the issued share capital of
HK$31,980,000 of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited and the amount of
share capital and share premium of HK$1,268,440,000 of the Company
transferred and issued to GJHL in exchange for the entire issued share
capital of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited on 14 June 2010.
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36. Operating lease commitments, capital commitments 36. REHAERE  EXRERH
and other commitments ft A
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZT—tF+ZA=+—H  ~&H
payables under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: RIBET A BEEE 2 EE T HAR A E
HY ) R SR B Y AR R B RRIA AR 2R 40
N
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Within one year —F R 3,397 4,627
In the second to fifth years, inclusive “ERF(RREERME) - 3,318
3,397 7,945

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments for system upgrade and renovation of
premises of approximately HK$3,026,000 which were contracted but not
provided for as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$4,724,000).

Other commitments

The Group undertakes underwriting obligations on placing, IPO, takeover
and merger activities and financial obligations to loan facilities granted to
customers. As at 31 December 2017, the underwriting and financial
obligations were approximately HK$2,836 million and HK$159 million
respectively (2016: HK$576 million and HK$375 million).

BREE
REERARERFREREEELER
A HE 43,026,000 70 + ZKIBEEI A
WARZE—tF+=-_A=+—HBF
B (== — 7N ¢ 4,724000787T) ©

H e

AEEARE  BAAFAEE  WEK
A EBIRHAEAERARTELHN
EFMERUEREAR N —tF
TZA=+—H  &ERBERED A
NAR2836BE BB T RINNEEST(Z
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37. Directors' and senior management's emoluments 37. EERGAREEEMS
ESHRME
AEEBE_ZT—+tHERF
—NFE+_A=+—HLEEER
[t/ B AR R R) & 5 5 I A A
SEIIAT

(a) Directors' current emoluments (a)
The current emoluments of every director of the Company paid/
payable by the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 are set out below:

BE=-Z2-—t&+=-RA=+—H

Year ended 31 December 2017

LEE
Employer's
contribution
Salaries and Discretionary to pension
Directors' fees allowances bonuses scheme Total
EEXEEHRE
ESHe HeRER BERA TR Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director TER THR TER TET TERT
Executive directors: HITEE :
Yim Fung (Note (i) R (FEEE (i) = 3,710 9,362 18 13,090
Wong Tung Ching I&F - 3,528 9,450 18 12,996
Qi Haiying Filjiegay - 3,504 8,470 18 11,992
Li Guangjie A - 3,461 6,160 18 9,639
Non-executive directors: ~ FEENFTEE :
Liu Yiyong (Note(i1) Bz 3 (P EE (i) = = - - -
Xie Lebin (Note(ii)) EEIAGIEA) - - - - -
Independent non- BUIEHTT
executive directors: EE:
Fu Tingmei B 398 - - - 398
Song Ming RE 398 - - - 398
Tsang Yiu Keung BRR 398 - - - 398
1,194 14,203 33,442 72 48,911
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EEREREERMNE @)

37. Directors’' and senior management’'s emoluments 37.

(continued)
(a) Directors' current emoluments (continued) () EEHEMEE)
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—A"F+=-A=+—H
LEE
Employer's
contribution
Salaries and Discretionary to pension
Directors' fees allowances bonuses scheme Total
EEmERE
EErkn HoRER WAL AR Bar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director T THL FHET AT THIT
Executive directors: HiTEE :
Yim Fung (Note (i) R (HIE () - 3,620 10,402 18 14,040
Wong Tung Ching I&F - 3,486 10,500 18 14,004
Qi Haiying FipisE - 3435 7,700 15 11,150
Li Guangjie TEA = 3,375 5,040 18 8,433
Li Sang, Edward 254
(Note (iii) (Pt 22 (iii)) = 1234 = 3 1237
Independent non- BT
executive directors: EE:
Fu Tingmei BEx 398 - - - 398
Song Ming R 398 - - - 398
Tsang Yiu Keung BER 398 - - - 398
1,194 15,150 33,642 72 50,058

There was no arrangement under which a director or chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

Note (i):
Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company.

Note (ii):
Mr. Xie Lebin and Mr. Liu Yiyong have been appointed as non-executive
directors with effect from 19 June 2017.

Note (iii):

Mr. Li Sang, Edward has resigned as an executive director with effect from 24
February 2016. The amount of salaries and allowances included benefits in
kind.

FALEEEHTETHRABN
EoiFEREEAHFHMA T

FEEE() -
RSB BARAN TERRITHRAEH -

B () -
BEREERAEB LR B+
FRATNBREEEAFNTES -

B 5 i)
FERERBT—"F-A=-+MA
BRHINTES FoREUSTFRE
EYEF| -
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37. Directors' and senior management's emoluments
(continued)

(b)

Directors' deferred emoluments

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 32 to
the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above directors'
and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.

Certain directors were granted share awards under the share award
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note
33 to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2017, the total
number of the Awarded Shares awarded to directors amounted to
6,707,000 and a share-based compensation expense of HK$21.4
million has been recognised in profit or loss.

The amount of share-based compensation expense illustrated in the
below table represents amortisation to profit or loss of the fair value
of these share options and awarded shares granted to the directors
measured at the respective grant dates.
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37. Directors' and senior management's emoluments 37. EERSHREEEMS @

(continued)
(b) Directors' deferred emoluments (continued) (b) EFEZEME (&)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tH&+=-A=+-—H
LEE
Share-based compensation reserve
RGP RERGERE
Share option scheme Share award scheme
BREE FR 17 5 B =t 21 8 AR AE B X
Share option Share award
expense expense
Date of grant (Note 32) Date of grant (Note 33)
BRERX FR 47 52 R
REAH (Hy&E32) REBH (PfyE33)
HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director THET TER
Executive directors: HiTEE :
Yim Fung (Note (i) R (FizE ) 10/1/2014 17 15/4/2015 3,441
13/7/2017 254 18/4/2016 2,063
13/4/2017 2,559
Wong Tung Ching TRE 10/1/2014 9 15/4/2015 1,871
13/7/2017 254 18/4/2016 2,447
13/4/2017 2,582
Qi Halying PR 11/6/2015 2,755 18/4/2016 1,529
13/7/2017 254 13/4/2017 1,895
Li Guangjie RN 10/1/2014 4 15/4/2015 532
13/7/2017 254 18/4/2016 1,223
13/4/2017 1,240
Non-executive directors: HHTEE
Liu Yiyong (Note(ii)) 2= 8 () - -
Xie Lebin (Note(i)) EEQEACIEA (D) - -
Independent non-executive BT
directors: EE
Fu Tingmei EEEES - -
Song Ming R - -
Tsang Yiu Keung LR - -
3,801 21,382
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37. Directors' and senior management's emoluments 37. EERSREEEMS @)

(continued)
(b) Directors' deferred emoluments (continued) (b) EBELME (&)
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—X<E+=-HA=+-—8H

L&

Share-based compensation reserve

B RER AR

Share option scheme Share award scheme
B2 R fp B2
Share option Share award
expense expense
Date of grant (Note 32) Date of grant (Note 33)
BIRER M fn 2B
KB (Fit5E32) &It B A (FzE33)
HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director FAET THL
Executive directors: HITEE :
Yim Fung (Note (7)) & (BEE (1) 1/10/2014 634 4/9/2014 2,066
4{15/2015 9,339
4[18/2016 3,715
Wong Tung Ching FLE 1/10/2014 334 4/92014 584
4{15/2015 5,085
4[18/2016 4,401
Qi Haiying i 6/11/2015 5,959 4/18/2016 2,751
Li Guangjie WA 1102014 167 4/9/2014 166
4{15/2015 1,450
4(18/2016 2,201
Li Sang, Edward (Note (iii) 24 (B3 Gii)) 1/10/2014 167 4/9/2014 124
4{15/2015 1,212
Independent non- BUIEHT
executive directors: EE
Fu Tingmei BEE = =
Song Ming R - -
Tsang Yiu Keung TiRos - -
7,261 33,094
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37. Directors' and senior management's emoluments
(continued)

(b)

Directors' deferred emoluments (continued)

Note (i):

Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company.

Note (ii):
Mr. Xie Lebin and Mr. Liu Yiyong have been appointed as non-executive
directors with effect from 19 June 2017.

Note (iii):
Mr. Li Sang, Edward has resigned as an executive director with effect from 24
February 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the directors received total
remuneration amounting to HK$74.1 million (2016: HK$90.4 million),
which included share-based compensation and share award expenses
of approximately HK$3.8 million (2016: HK$7.3 million) attributable
to share options granted and of HK$21.4 million (2016: HK$33.1
million) attributable to share awards granted by Company, part of
which is in respect of their services to the Company.

37. EERGREEEME )

(b) ggﬁﬁmuﬁg

FERE() -
MG AR RRNTEERITHRAE -

B (i) -
HEREERBEBEECE-T—C
FRATNBREZEAERITES -

B3 (iii) -
TEREBREZE—AFZAZ+MA
BEHERITES -

HE-FT—+tF+=-A=1+—H
HFE EZWRHNHENEER
T41VEEBIT(ZZT—7NF 904
BEBL)  BEAARREAE
IRAEEFEAE AR D B EERHE R
D BB Q3sFE BT (=
T—AF 73EERT) MEEHN
R EEN4EEE T (=
—RNE:p1E&EFT) HPE
A TFEER AR B REA R
sz f e
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 38. MEBEERERMK:E

(a) Cash flows from operating activities () RETHELENRERE

2017
—Z—tF

HK$'000
TET

Cash flows from operating activities KRETEEENEERE

Profit before tax & 5% Bl A 1,559,112 1,188,607
Adjustments for: R ER -
Depreciation e 38,736 34,695
Share-based compensation expense LARRAD A AR A E R X 78,412 98,113
Net impairment charge on loans and BTEFERRIR
advances to customers BB 74,679 92,898
Net impairment charge on accounts FEM GRIE R B3 5
receivable 22,622 42
Foreign exchange adjustment on FEW R RE RS 2
provision of impairment on 4N 58 B
accounts receivable 40 3
Net reversal of impairment charge on EEERRITESRE
client trust bank balance e EIpE R (9.652) -
Net reversal of impairment charge on BRI E R EF R
loan commitments (136) =
Net reversal of impairment charge on EL th j& W R IR (B 1 05 R
other receivables (86) =
Net impairment on receivable from 2 7] 120 i 173 % e M KB
reverse repurchase agreement BB 74 -
Net reversal of impairment charge on ReRAeEEMRIE
cash and cash equivalents e EbEc: ) (87) =
1,763,714 1,414,358
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 38. B EREXRMHT (&)
(continued)
(a) Cash flows from operating activities (continued) (a)

2017
—®—+tF

HK$'000
FTEx

Increase in other assets E &R (3,006) (5.125)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BAFEFTFAEBZED

through profit or loss &b E N (23,857,437) (8,686,237)
(Increase)/decrease in derivative financial T4 & @ T E

instruments (), (90,821) 3,268
Increase in loans and advances to BTEFPHERK

customers ARG NN (1,120,108) (2,255,185)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable & U FXIE (3% le])//m’J\ (2,874,140) 436,153
(Increase)/decrease in receivable from [ 17 [2] B8 197 5 JIE UK

reverse repurchase agreements (3% hn) R (1,032,469) 28,913
Increase in obligations under repurchase

agreements 218 15 2 ) (RRR 20 5,313,999 530,441
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TERFUE -~ e REAM

other receivables FE W SR IE R 31,304 107,312
Increase in financial liabilities at fair value &R (BT ABZEH

through profit or loss SRIE FEIL N 5,523,256 2,980,180
Decrease in client trust bank balances B ERRITEHRRD 62,557 2,262,074
Increase in time deposits with original R EER REI B BiE =18 8

maturity more than three months 2 TE HATF 538 hn (93,990) (10,000)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable JE < ZRIEE 0, G 4) 2,081,212 (3,347,274)
Increase in other payables and accrued H A & A~ K08 N FE At

liabilities BEE 201,549 11,739
Provision for impairment on accounts

receivables RS R R (4,515) -
Provision for impairment on client trust REEARITEH

bank balances BEEE (22,583) =
Provmon. for impairment on loan B L (R

commitments (149) =
Provision for impairment on loans and BT EFHER

advances to customers IR /)EKTE?%{% (236,346) -
Prowspn for impairment on other S A TS

receivables (110) -
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 38. mEBEEREBRM T (&)

(continued)

(a) Cash flows from operating activities (continued) () RETHELENBEERER)
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FHET
Cash used in operations RIS NS (14,358,083) (6,529,383)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBFEH (136,962) (204,095)
Net cash flows used in operating activities A& EBRIR S HEFE (14,495,045) (6,733,478)
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBRRERE
included: (DEc
— Interest received - BUFIE 1,279,762 1,277,728
— Interest paid - BATHE 377,866 333,874
— Dividend received - B YRR & 15,352 8,212
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEITHEENEEESH
Debt
Bank securities
borrowings in issue
21T
RITHER BEE S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
At 1 January 2017 R—E—tF—HA—H 8,911,433 5,823,241
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREE 4,861,686 10,351,663
Foreign exchange movement S|\ BEE % ) 8,602 188,987
Interest expense AMEBFAX 310,383 25,054
Interest paid classified as operating ANl =Y B =Ry
cash flows EATFE (306,639) (10,258)
Increase in interest payable FE AT FIL S 38 N (3.744) (14,796)
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+F+=-_A=+—H 13,781,721 16,363,891
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39. Unconsolidated structured entity 39. REZEHEBHER
A structured entity is an entity in which voting rights are not the dominant HEREERRFRORENIERTEZEHIED
factor in deciding control. Structured entity is generally created to achieve FTERZNEE ABENMEBBEERE
a narrow and well defined objective with restrictions around their ongoing RE—FEMRBEAETHEEmMSK - H
activities. I TEE BRI o
Depending on the Group's power over the activities of the entity and its ‘%EWKE@%TE?%%%EE?%JU REZE
exposure to and the ability to influence its own returns, it may consolidate BERNTEREREFZETEREIRM
the entity. In other cases, it may sponsor or have an interest on such an RENME  EAJEiSEREEAR -1
entity but does not consolidate it. The Group sponsors an entity when: HiERT  Hr st BN ERINER
RHEBER  BTKEREAAKR T
FERBASEEEE—MEES
(i) Itisthe majority user of the entity; () EARAZEBNEIERAF:
(i) Its name appears in the name of the entity or on the products issued (i) HEBEREZEENLEINZ
by the entity; BERBTHEMRL
(iii) It provides implicit or explicit guarantees of the entity's performance; (i) HAZEBNXERHEBSH
B ER
(iv) It led the formation of the entity. (v) HEBVZER
Income from the sponsored structured entity and assets transferred to the KEXEHHERMEERBOWA REE
structured entity are as follows: FHEBEEENEENT :

2017
—Z2—tF

Commission A Commission Assets

and fees transferred and fees transferred

AeEREA CEREE AekE M EEEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTEx TR TAT

Assets securitisations ~ BEFH1L 19,400 7,073,600 8,530 2,035,831
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40. Five highest paid individuals 40. AUBEHMAL
Excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales BRIABRIATEERNHEERSMN A RAE
generated by the individuals, the five highest paid employees during the Ik R FRIBAN - S N A AL = Fr B
year included three (2016: three) directors, details of whose remuneration BEBEZRA(ZTE—R"F: Z4R)E
are set out in note 37 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining . HEEFMFREN EXME7 - FA
two (2016: two) non-director and highest paid employees for the year are HBME(ZE—R"F - MB)IFEER
as follows: SR EENFMFBIET
2017
—Z2—tF
HK$'000
FHET
Salaries and allowances Fre MoERL 4,656 4,617
Discretionary bonuses BIBIEAL 21,700 18,900
Employer's contribution to pension scheme  {& =& MR R & 525K 36 36
Sub-total /NEt 26,392 23,553
Share-based compensation reserve VAR 7 7 EERE i (B R
— Share option expense - BRERY 132 200
— Share award expense — Rg 7 22 Eh R St 8,457 8,669
Total 5t 34,981 32,422
The number of non-director and highest paid employees of the Group/ AEEFEERFE=HMESHABR
whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows: HESsEmT
2017 2016
—E—t& —E-RF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAY EE A2
Emolument bands e & E
— HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000 —13,500,001 & 7T Z 14,000,000 7 7T = 1
— HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000 —14,500,001 % 7T Z 15,000,000 7 7T = =
— HK$15,000,001 to HK$15,500,000 —15,000,001 % 7T Z 15,500,000 7 7T 1 =
— HK$18,500,001 to HK$19,000,000 —18,500,001 % 7T 2 19,000,000 7 7T = 1
— HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000 —19,500,001 % 7T 2 20,000,000 7 7T 1 -
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41. Related party transactions 4. BHERS
(@) In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in the @ BRRHERRIITHINORZR

REEROI » AN 52 1B 10 4R P £ B Bt

financial statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year.

Commission expenses to the

SN FREER DA

ETUTERRS -

2017
—®—tF

HK$'000
FERx

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
T T

ultimate holding company BeRX (i) (2,252) (2,468)
Commission expenses to the AR EIBRIBINERE

ultimate holding company for & E ROFI BRF N

trading in RMB Qualified R T REER

Foreign Institutional Investors NAINAEHAX

(RQFII) account (i) (183) (550)
Professional and consultancy fees 15 T B XK B A 74

paid to a fellow subsidiary BEENEAE (iii) (22,140) (19,420)
Management fee income and BARRIZEWEB AR

performance fee income of a EERRRMEAR

private fund managed by a RE LS E S WHH

wholly-owned subsidiary of EEBIWAKR

the Company and invested by RIWBUWA

a fellow subsidiary (iv) 1,716 1,274
Total fees received from the above B it FLEE 4 W ERHY

private fund wER (v) 394 205
Commission income of a public BERZEMBATEEN

fund managed by a fellow NEEPWEHNMEE

subsidiary WA (vi) 39 136
Commission income from an B AN R A & BELEY

intermediate holding company (A ON (vii) 3,526 1,543
Commission income from the B & LA AR A B LR

ultimate holding company BalA (viii) 70 34
Underwriting fee and sponsor fee B &R A R UERE)

income from the ultimate BB RRBEWA

holding company (ix) 176,304 -
Management fee income from a ERYNEIES= = PNE

public fund managed by a BEIE R NIER A A

wholly-owned subsidiary of WERNEE SR

the Company and invested by MEEERA

the intermediate holding company (x) 1,082 3,526
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Il

41. Related party transactions (continued) 4. BBAERZ (&)
(a)  (continued) @ (&)
2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET
Management fee income from a BAARIZEWE AR
public fund managed by a BB KA A A
wholly-owned subsidiary of 2= Il /) A 55 AL IUER
the Company and controlled by MNEEERA
the intermediate holding company (xi) 1,658 1,661
Management fee income and BARARIZEH B AR
handling fee income from EENERMNEAA
public funds managed by a KRERN NS ES R
wholly-owned subsidiary of HNEEBRFEBUNA
the Company and invested by
a fellow subsidiary (xii) 5,357 1,975
Commission income from a BASE S WEAE
public fund el A (xiii) 265 100
Commission income from funds BB AREENES
managed by a fellow subsidiary U B B9 & U A (xiv) 2,377 3,841
Commission income from a fellow B[R &M B A a1 U ELA
subsidiary WA (xv) 55 -
Commission income from a fellow B & &M B A 71U ELA)
subsidiary T ON (xvi) 13 7
Professional fee and consultancy A FERARIER R RIAY
fee paid to the ultimate BEREAE
holding company (xvii) - (361)
Equity distribution on Perpetual S FRMERRF
Securities paid to the KBEFERDIK
intermediate holding company (xviii) (43,825) (7,271)
Consultancy service fee and TR FEEERAT®
corporate finance service fee paid ~ ZFARIEE M %
to the ultimate holding company AR E (xix) (15,158) -
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(1)

(if)

(iif)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were
calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value stated in
the Cooperation Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were
calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value through
RQFII account as stated in the Cooperation Agreement signed with a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The professional and consultancy fees paid to the fellow subsidiary for
the provision of capital market information were charged at
HK$22,140,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$19,420,000).

The management fee income and performance fee income received
from a private fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary were charged at 1.5%
per annum of the net asset value at the last working day of each
month and 20% of the positive increment in the net asset value for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The total fees received from the private fund mentioned in note (iv)
above included commission income which was based on 0.15% of the
transaction value.

The commission income received from the public fund managed by the
fellow subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The commission income received from the intermediate holding
company was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage
agreement with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The commission income received from the ultimate holding company
was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement
with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The underwriting and sponsor fee income received from the ultimate
holding company was based on the underwriting and sponsor
agreement with the ultimate holding company.

The management fee income received from a public fund managed by
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by the
intermediate holding company was charged based on the percentage
prescribed in the investment management agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

4. BEARS #)

(@) (#)
Mgk

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

SN FREEBRATNME X
TDREARNBN—H2EMBAR
RIZLHNAEHHIIANR ZE
BOLEE -

T FHEELERABDNAERAS
DREARRH—REEWB R
RAIEVHNEERZIBNER
ROFIBRF R SEBEDLLETE ©

HE-_Z—t+tF+=-A=+—H
IEFERFE RN E A RREE AR
MGEENNBEEREANES N
22,1400007% jo( = T — ;N F:
19,420,000 78 7T) °

BARBIZENEARERE KR
R B A RIRE R FLE E S UE
HMEBBRARKRERARE
2-_FT—+tF+-A=+—HBI1
FESARB - EALIFENEE
FESF 150 REEFEEM
FEH) 2000 W B o

B B 5 (iv) BT AL B E S IR Y 48
BRABERZSHEMN015%TEE
LA °

BERRANBRARAEENDEESD
WERE A & AR EARE] — K
2 EMB AR R KL HHED
A EBERE -

LR ONSIE 8L AL PN
TyREA R B 2 BB AR L
MR A&7 BB E B -

SRS Sz ONSIE S oL L PN
TREARNAR —REENBERA
B R IHETAREBIRE

B &R D B AR B 8 R AR
BERERKRERARZEINE
HRRBIHERE

BARRZENBARER RS
MERAFRE N REED U
MERBRARBE_T—tF
TTA=ZT-BLEFENREE
B {3 AR TE BB 2 ELURER
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(continued)

The management fee income received from a public fund (2016: three)
managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and controlled
by the intermediate holding company was based on a percentage
prescribed in the respective investment management agreements for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The management fee income and handling fee income received from
two public funds (2016: one) managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary and the
intermediate holding company were based on the percentage
prescribed in the investment management agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The commission income received from a public fund mentioned in note
(xii) above was based on the percentage stated in the signed brokerage
agreement with another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The commission income received from funds managed by the fellow
subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage
agreement with the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The commission income received from a fellow subsidiary was based
on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The commission income received from a fellow subsidiary was based
on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The professional fee and consultancy fee paid to the ultimate holding
company were based on the usage of research reports and financial
advisory services provided to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company principally engaged in the provision of futures dealing and
broking services.

Included in Group's balance of Perpetual Securities was an amount of
HK$971,125,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$971,125,000)
owned by the intermediate holding company. The accrued distribution
payable to the intermediate holding company was HK$7,316,000
(2016: HK$7,271,000).

The consultancy service fee and corporate finance service fee paid to
the ultimate holding company were based on the consultancy services
and corporate finance service provided to wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company.
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(a)

(&)
Bt -

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(%)

EARFZEWMBAREERT
MERRREHN—RH(ZF—X
F:ZH)REESKRBHNERE
WARBE-_T—+tF+=-A
=t RLEFEMNHEBREER
T AL TE B B 0 EEURER

BARNRIZEMBAREERRA
R BRRREEERAREZE
MME(ZZE— R F: —H)RAHE
HEe BN EBRBRFESKA
BEE_T—+tF+t=-A=1+—
AILLFEMREERHERTDN
B URER »

B £ SCHTEE (xii) Pt A S S YR
BB RATIHZEARRR S —R
TEMBRRBELNLL HET
ANBEDLIRE o

B R RHE QA E R R E S R
A RATIRERRE 2 E M
BRBBEILEL HHTI AR E
BUE -

EICES Y NSEN L N
TyRERR T 2 EH B QAL
R4 5 A E B E -

EIEESGYENGEN LA N
TRERRB2EWNBAREL
B AE RS AR E B R E -

T HRBEBR R B EE KK
ABETDRREHTARR —RER
REHERERLKLEEBNEE
B B8 X B B0 B 2 o e B 7 A
BRT5{50 R 8 RN

REBRERKEESEHRBDIE
RZZ—+tF+=-A=+—HH
PAERAFREANRE
971,125,000 7L( = & — /X §F ¢
971,125,000 7T ) © F& AR 9 12 iR
A B K FE 5T 9 K /47,316,000 78 7T
(ZZ—7"%F : 7,271,000/87T) °
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

(xxiv)

(xxv)

Included in the Group's accounts payable was a broker payable due to
the ultimate holding company of HK$6,723,000 (2016: HK$8,006,000)
arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December 2017. The balance
was unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under
the relevant market practices.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable was a broker receivable
due from the ultimate holding company of HK$16,704,000 (2016:
HK$20,230,000) arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December
2017. The credit terms provided to the ultimate holding company were
consistent with the practice of the securities dealing industry. The
balance was unsecured, interest-free and receivable on the settlement
day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the accounts receivable were management fee and
performance fee receivables due from investment funds managed by
the Group mentioned above of HK$1,523,000 (2016: HK$745,000)
arising from the provision of asset management services as at 31
December 2017. The balances were unsecured, interest-free and
receivable monthly in arrears.

Included in the Group's accounts payable was the accounts payable to
the public fund mentioned in note (vi) above arising from dealing in
securities of HK$263,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

Included in the Group's accounts payable were amounts due to the
intermediate holding company of HK$11,595,000 (2016:
HK$485,909,000), the immediate holding company of nil amount
(2016: HK$135,807,000), the ultimate holding company of HK$221,000
(2016: HK$1,328,000) and the fellow subsidiary of HK$93,844,000
(2016: nil) arising from dealing in securities, futures and foreign
exchange as at 31 December 2017. The balances were unsecured,
interest-free and payable on demand.

Included in the Group's accounts payable were amounts due to funds
managed by the fellow subsidiary of HK698,000 (2016: HK$913,000)
arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December 2017. The balance
was unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under
the relevant market practice.
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xxvi) Included in the Group's accounts receivable were amounts due from

funds managed by the fellow subsidiary of HK$6,325,000 (2016: nil)
arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December 2017. The balance
was unsecured, interest-free and receivable on the settlement day
under the relevant market practices.

(xxvii) Included in the Group's accounts receivable from a public fund
mentioned in note (xiii) above arising from dealing in securities was
HK$2,959,000 (2016: nil) as at 31 December 2017.

(xxviii) Included in the Group's accounts payable was the accounts payable to
the private fund mentioned in note (v) above arising from dealing in
securities of HK$893,000 (2016: nil) as at 31 December 2017.

The Group's ultimate holding company, Guotai Junan, is subject to
the control of the PRC Government which also controls a significant
portion of assets and entities in the PRC (collectively referred to as
“state-owned enterprises”). Therefore, transactions with state-owned
enterprises are regarded as related party transactions.

Majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group were
entered into with state-owned banks. In addition, the Group enters
into transactions with state-owned enterprises that relate to the
Group's normal business activities, including but not limited to
brokerage services, corporate finance business, asset management
business, loan and financing business and investment holding and
market making business. These transactions are entered into in the
ordinary course of business at an arm's length and under the normal
commercial terms and conditions as to those that would have been
entered into with non-state-owned enterprises, which were not
considered as individually significant in accordance with HKAS 24.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (iii), (vi) to (vii),
(xv) and (xix) above also constitute continuing connected
transactions to be disclosed in the annual report as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel of the
Group are disclosed in note 37.
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42. Financial risk management 42. TRERERE

The Group's activities expose it to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and monitoring of these risks which are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group's aim is therefore
to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise
any potential adverse effect on the Group's financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are approved by the Board of
Directors and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor the risks and adherence
to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information. The Board of
Directors provides written principles for overall risk management. The
Group regularly reviews its risk management policies to reflect any change
in the market and clients.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing each of these
risks are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to customers,
accounts receivable, debt securities, bank balances and client trust bank
balances which are included in the Group's asset portfolio.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Board of Directors delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to
monitor the credit risk of the Group. Members of the Credit Committee
include, inter alia, the Chief Executive Officer, Responsible Officers, the
Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Equity Financing Department. The
Credit Committee is responsible for the development of financing business
and approval of major credit exposure.

The Equity Financing Department is responsible for approval, monitoring
and review of the Group's credit risk of margin clients. It is also responsible
for making settlement calls when the trades of margin clients exceed their
respective limits. Failure to meet margin calls may result in liquidation of
the client's position. The credit limit and margin limit for each client and
the lending ratio of securities acceptable as margin collateral prepared by
the Equity Financing Department will be further approved by the Credit
Committee.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an
element of credit risk. The Group minimises such risk exposure by
performing a detailed credit analysis, and dedicated professionals are
assigned to oversee and monitor the performance. These key investment
decisions are also subject to approval by the Credit Committee.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription of
new shares are normally settled within 1 week from the drawdown date.
Forced liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their
shortfall within a specific period of tolerance after the IPO allotment result
is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor's and Moody's
ratings or their equivalents are used by the Risk Management Department
for managing credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group's own
assessment through the use of internal rating tools.

The Group's bank balances are deposited in respectable and large
commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held in
segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorised financial institutions
in Hong Kong. The credit risk of bank balances and client trust bank
balances is considered to be manageable.

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients arising
from dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment
settlement term of 1 to 3 days. The Group allows credit up to the
settlement dates of the respective securities transactions (normally from
T+1 to T+3 days). All applications for credit limits must be reviewed by the
Credit Manager and approved by any member of the Credit Committee.
However, no credit limit would be granted to new clients. The Equity
Financing Department determines whether a forced liquidation action is to
be taken against clients with overdue balances on a case-by-case basis. The
Credit Committee regularly reviews the overdue balances.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, cEIEMRER &)
Credit risk (continued) EERE &)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for futures,
options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking. No
transaction is allowed to be executed if the current position of the
customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit placed and the
aggregate of the required margin deposits of each futures, options and
leveraged foreign exchange contract are timely monitored by both the
dealers and the Risk Management Department. Margin calls will be
executed by the on-site duty staff for futures, options and leveraged
foreign exchange brokerage business if there is a deficit with the margin
deposit. Forced liquidation of the customer's position will be executed if
the customer fails to meet the margin calls.

With the above stated controls, management considers that the credit risk
of the Group resulting from securities, futures, options and leveraged
foreign exchange brokerage business as well as margin and other loan
financing is manageable.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large
financial institutions which are governed by regulators. The credit risk of
accounts receivable from brokers and dealers is considered to be
manageable.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment
funds arising from corporate finance, asset management and investment
holding and market making businesses are manageable as the credit rating
and reputation of trade counterparties are sound.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other
clearing houses is considered to be minimal.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's policy requires the review of individual outstanding amounts
at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual circumstances
or market condition.

The Group has early adopted HKFRS 9, where the impairment requirements
under HKFRS 9 are based on an expected credit loss model. The Group
applies simplified approach to measure ECL on accounts receivable; and
general approach to measure ECL on loans and advances to customers,
time deposits and other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost as
well as loan commitments. Under the simplified approach, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the
general approach, financial assets migrate through the following three
stages based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition: Stage 1:
12-months ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired and Stage 3:
Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis based on the Group's historical
experience and expert credit risk assessment, including forward-looking
information. The loan and advances use the number of days past due
("DPD") and loan-to-collateral value ("LTV") to determine significant
increase in credit risk. For non-standard financing, internally derived credit
ratings have been identified as representing the best available determinant
of credit risk. Credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly if the
credit rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting date relative to
the credit rating at the date of initial recognition.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (continued)

Calculation of expected credit losses

The ECL are assessed by the Group on semi-annual basis. Based on DPD, LTV
and internally derived credit ratings, loans and advances to customers are
classified into 3 stages.

ECL for retail margin loan under stage 1 is calculated on collective basis.
The probabilities of price changes of various scenarios are calculated based
on the observed historical price movements of the underlying collateral
stocks. The ECL of each scenario is then calculated in accordance with the
respective loan exposure. When the retain margin loan classified under
stage 2 and stage 3, the lifetime ECL is calculated.

The ECL of non-standard financing is calculated on individual basis. The
Group has pre-defined loss rate of each loan's category. The loss rate are
reference to the default rate for performing and non-performing grades
from external rating agencies.

If there is material decrease in collateral value and the full recovery of the
loan is in doubt, the retail and non-standard loan will be classified into
stage 3. For the loans classified as stage 3, the Group may further calculate
the ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected
credit loss. Each scenario is associated with different exposure at default
and probability.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

When estimating the ECL on loan and advances to customers, the Group
has incorporated forward-looking economic information through the use
of industry trend and experienced credit judgement to reflect the
qualitative factors, and through the use of multiple probability-weighted
scenarios by the stock market analysis.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other
credit enhancements

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the

counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the

reporting period, in relation to each class of financial assets, is the carrying

amount of those assets as indicated in the statement of financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to
the Group at 31 December 2017 and 2016, without taking account of any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(a)

Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the majority
of cash and bank balances are located in Hong Kong. As the Group's
bank balances and client trust bank balances are deposited with a
number of financially sound financial institutions, in the opinion of
the directors, the concentration risk of the Group's bank balances
and client trust bank balances is insignificant.

Loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from
clients

The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to
customers (including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan
financing) and accounts receivable from clients are individuals who
are mainly located in China. The Equity Financing Department and
Risk Management Department daily prepares an analysis of key
margin client and futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange
client exposure for review to avoid excessive concentration of risk. As
the Group trades with a large number of diversified clients, in the
opinion of the directors, the concentration of risk of loans and
advances to customers and accounts receivable from clients is
manageable.

248 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2017

42.

SHEREEE)

EERRE @)

BT E R dn s B (= B 1@ T BT AT
HE &= ERER

R ZEFRERRE AR SR ET
HEME AIAEEMAEHRSES R
BEERENRSEERREASMBEMNR
RAMTZEEENKREE -

ZECBAAERN-_ZT—+tFER_F
—ANEFE+Z A=+ —AFEYNEER
B R EB - BReH A AT KT
mE AT E s BERAER

[ 515 B =

HiEE

(@) WRITHEBRRFPEERITER
AR ERRITEB IR
B RIRTTHE BRI 5 F 9
REE - HRAEBORITHELR
REPERRITARDENREZR
MHERENSREE MESR
RARBENRITEBREPER
RITREBHOEPREBRTAK ©

% 1% B A R R 5

b)) HBTEFNERRBIRREK
%‘*_}52}7
REDBRTFTEEFHERRBR(E
EFRER BXAAHAZEEER
REMEREE) L REREPR
ENRZEFABA £Z2ER
FE - BE RS R TR
HFEBHRELEHNETEFER
FRHAE - BEKERINERP

ﬁ%ﬁ AR B E S A
R HRAEBHEAESTS
%mzﬁ*%'w§$%%%

EENERMBRUNEREF
REBENETEKREREREEZ
ﬁqo



Notes to Financial Statements

BT R M ot

31 December 2017
—T—+F+ZR=+—H

42. Financial risk management (continued) 42, cEIEMRER &)
Credit risk (continued) EERE &)
Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure [E 1= B R b2 7 % 6 & 2= 1Y J2) Bz 5
(continued) HIEE (&)
()  Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as clearing houses © BRER R5BPUREEFR
and others Hib A +HFRIE

The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers
and dealers from its securities, futures, options and leveraged foreign
exchange brokerage business as well as other receivables from asset
management, corporate finance and investment holding and market
making businesses. Responsible Officers timely monitor excess
deposits placed with dealers and brokers to ensure the concentration
of risk of accounts receivable is manageable.

Securities borrowing and lending

In the normal course of brokerage business, the Group may enter into
securities borrowing and lending arrangements with financial institutions
and the Group's customers. As at 31 December 2017, the Group borrowed
equity securities of HK$123,112,000 (2016: HK$24,954,000) from financial
institutions and set aside equity securities of HK$1,263,034,000 (2016:
HK$370,908,000) pledged by margin clients, for such lending arrangements
to customers. Cash collateral of HK$1,479,445,000 (2016: HK$400,852,000)
was received from the customers while HK$123,444,000 (2016:
HK$24,578,000) was placed to the financial institutions.

The Group maintains no net position in such securities borrowing and
lending transactions and is not subject to significant price risk. However,
under the securities borrowing and lending arrangements, the cash
collateral received and cash collateral placed are included in the accounts
payable and accounts receivable from brokers and dealers, respectively. The
Group is principally liable for repaying the borrowed securities in case of
any default by the customers.

In the normal course of financial products, market making and investments
business, the Group may also enter into securities borrowing and lending
arranged with financial institutions. As at 31 December 2017, the Group
borrowed exchange-traded funds of nil amount (2016: HK$3,162,000) from
a financial institution for the market making activities and placed nil
amount (2016: HK$3,320,000) to the financial institution as cash collateral.
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42.

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in
interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the level of
volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange
rates and equity prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed it to interest
rate risk and price risk. The market risk mainly includes cash flow interest
rate risk and price risk. The Group has established policies and procedures
for monitoring and controlling the market risk arising from these financial
instruments.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's loans and advances to customers, accounts
receivable, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
accounts payable to clients, bank borrowings, debt securities in issue,
receivable from reverse repurchase agreements, obligations under
repurchase agreements, client trust bank balances and cash and bank
balances. Debt investments usually bear a fixed rate interest and they are
managed through the strategy of trading them within a short period of
time.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans receivable at variable
rates exposed the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Other financial
assets and liabilities which are mainly carried at amortised cost are either
non-interest-bearing or fixed interest-bearing with short term maturities
within one year, of which the interest rate risk is also considered to be
minimal. The Group mitigates its interest rate risk by monitoring market
interest rate movements and revising the interest rates offered to its
customers on an ongoing basis in order to limit potential adverse effects of
interest rate movements on net interest income. The Group regularly
calculates the impact on profit or loss of a possible interest rate shift on its
portfolio of bank borrowings, margin loans receivable and interest-bearing
bank deposits.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 2. TREBER®)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the interest rate by 1%
(2016: 1%), with all other variables held constant, the net interest income
for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been increased/decreased
by approximately HK$57.5 million (2016: HK$193.7 million), but the fair
value of the debt investments for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
have been decreased/increased by approximately HK$218.0 million (2016:
HK$100.2 million). The estimated 1% increase or decrease represents
management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting period. The sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

The financial products and derivative financial instruments held by the
Group are structured as debt securities in issue for sales to customers. They
are not subject to significant risk as the risk has been transferred to
customers accordingly.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity instruments
and fund investments held by the Group which are classified in the
statement of financial position as financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. Price risk is the risk of changes in fair value of
financial instruments from fluctuations, whether such a change in price is
caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or factors affecting
all instruments traded in the markets. The Group mitigates its price risk by
performing detailed due diligence analysis of investments and dedicated
professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance of
investments.

At 31 December 2017, the profit before tax would increase/decrease by
HK$51.5 million for the equity and fund investment held for trading (2016:
HK$36.3 million) should the relevant indexes increase/decrease by 10%
(2016: 10%). The analysis is based on the assumption that all the equity
instruments move according to the historical correlation with the relevant
indexes and with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative because the year-end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

The asset quality of the margin clients' margin collateral will deteriorate
when the market comes down drastically. Scenario analysis and stress
testing are regularly performed on an individual client basis.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign currency
exchange rates will affect the Group's financial results and its cash flows.

The Group's foreign exchange risk principally arises from its leveraged
foreign exchange dealing and broking business as well as the Group's
transactions which are denominated in currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollars.

For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group hedges
the majority of the client positions through back-to-back transactions with
external counterparties. As the Group adopts a stringent control over its
positions, it is considered that foreign exchange risk exposure is
manageable.

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars (“US$") and Renminbi ("RMB"). The Group is
not exposed to material foreign exchange risk because HK$ is pegged with
US$. The Group also conducts appropriate hedging activities when it is
exposed to material exchange risk in RMB. Other foreign currency exposure
is relatively minimal to its total assets and liabilities. The foreign exchange
risk is daily managed and monitored by the Finance Department. As a
result, it is considered that foreign exchange risk exposure is manageable.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the
availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying business, the Finance Department maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining available committed credit facilities
from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by the Finance Department to ensure
the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. cRAEMEE (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESREMREE)
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve ERERBEARESRELEERNEED
(comprising undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents RBEHE(BERERERRE) X
on the basis of expected cash flows in strict compliance with statutory RekREFEBYHRFIEN - B
requirements. This is achieved by monitoring the liquidity position of the BPEEER . REINAEN  AKH
individual companies within the Group on a daily basis to ensure the FEGREZETRAANREE SN
availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations and compliance W EREHNDRESZEENRBESRE
with the statutory requirements such as the Hong Kong Securities and TEREEMR UREEBEETZE RN
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules. EEBHFLBE (BEER)FA) -
The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial BREBESHRKRBRRSRE » TREM
liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash flows: rEESRBENIEHER
As at 31 December 2017 R=B—tF+=-A=+—H

Up to 1 toless than 3 to less than

1 month 3 months 1 to 5 years Total
—f@AR —Z=@A b —2hF #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET 7 FHERT FTET
Liabilities i=F
Accounts payable e F0E 16,952,250 = = - 16,952,250
Bank borrowings RITIEK 9,395,707 4,418,025 - - 13,813,732
Debt securities in issue BETERES 12,211,302 46,605 4,122,763 - 16,380,670
Financial liabilities at fair 1R AF{EFTF AIB%
value through MemaE
profit or loss 9,008,776 - - - 9,008,776
Obligations under [l i E BV (1R
repurchase agreements 6,087,645 162,389 = = 6,250,034
53,655,680 4,627,019 4,122,763 - 62,405,462
Off-balance sheet items EESEBEXRIER
Underwriting obligations 7§ &5 2,836,419 - - - 2,836,419
Financial obligations to BENMEVBERE
loan facilities 158,665 - - - 158,665
Capital commitments &I 3,026 - - - 3,026
2,998,110 - - - 2,998,110
Derivative cash flow TTERERE
Derivative financial RIBREEER
instruments settled on TESRIA
a gross basis
Total inflow BIRA 976,856 391,239 4,086,970 - 5,455,065
Total outflow Febrta (958,776) (392,047)  (4,049,286) - (5400,109)
18,080 (808) 37,684 - 54,956
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. SHREABEE®)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEEREE(

As at 31 December 2016

R-B-A"F¥+=-A=1+—H

Upto 1tolessthan 3 to less than
1 month 12 months 1to 5 years
— @A ==+_-{8A —ERF i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T T i
Liabilities =L
Accounts payable e 5RIE 14,871,038 - - - 14,871,038
Bank borrowings RITIEK 6,826,825 - - 2,100,000 8,926,825
Debt securities in issue ERTEEES 5,647,531 = 180,836 = 5,828,367
Financial liabilities at fair IR AF{EFT AIB%
value through HeraRE
profit or loss 3,485,520 - - - 3,485,520
Obligations under [l 2 BV (R 1R
repurchase agreements 157,997 185,106 605,408 - 948,511
30,988,911 185,106 786,244 2,100,000 34,060,261
Off-balance sheet items BEBSERINER
Underwriting obligations 7§ &5 575,655 = = = 575,655
Financial obligations to BENMENBERE
loan facilities 375,419 - - - 375,419
Capital commitments B 4,724 - - - 4,724
955,798 - - - 955,798
Derivative cash flow TTERERE
Derivative financial RIBBEEER
instruments settled on MEEmT A
a gross basis
Total inflow HIRA 487,179 15,845 935,279 - 1,438,303
Total outflow e (485,835) (13,026) (947,940) = (1,446,801)
1,344 2,819 (12,661) - (8,498)
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group's financial
assets and liabilities not measured at fair value are not materially different
from their carrying amount due to their short term nature.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Group's valuation process

The Level 1 and Level 2 fair values of financial assets are measured by
reference to quoted market prices and brokers' quotes, respectively. The
Group has engaged an independent professionally qualified valuer,
International Valuation Limited, to perform the valuation of financial
instruments in Level 3 for financial reporting purposes. These valuation
reports are sent to the Finance Department and the Audit Committee for
discussion at least twice per annum, which is in line with the Group's
reporting dates.

At each financial year end, the Finance Department reviews all significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to measure the fair
values of financial instruments in Level 3. Changes in fair values of Levels 2
and 3 financial assets are analysed at each reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group's financial instruments:
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. SHREABEE®)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) BRATVEFENEMIAEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEGEN T A(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NIEEZR(E)
Assets measured at fair value: BAFEFENEE :
As at 31 December 2017 R-E—tF+=-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
FANTRANATER
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

T B EDN BEAEL

mHHRE AEEZ2Y BE2Y
(ZE14%) (F24R) (E34Rk) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TART FER FTAER

Financial assets held for trading H{EFEESRAEE

— Listed equity securities - ERAES 423,450 - - 423,450
— Listed debt securities - FTERES - 7,517,668 = 7,517,668
— Unlisted debt securities - JELTERES = 601,913 = 601,913
Financial assets at fair value BAFESF AR
through profit or loss HEmEE
— Listed fund investments - EmESKRE 23,249 - - 23,249
— Unlisted fund investments -FLETELKRE - 238,399 - 238,399
— Other financial instruments -Hiv&gIT A - 119,592 - 119,592
— Financial products - SMEM 2,111,520 24,515,860 1,619,111 28,246,491
Derivative financial instruments  $T4& €@ T E - 110,461 - 110,461
2,558,219 33,103,893 1,619,111 37,281,223
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. SHRRABERE®)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) BAFEFTENSRBITAEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BATFEGENLETA(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZER(E)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BAFEFENEE : (8)
As at 31 December 2016 R-E—-XRF+-A=+—8

Fair value measurement using

REANTEENAFETE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
&R BEREX
mi5HIE RIS BR2H™
(F14) . (F38) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET TET

Financial assets held for trading H{FEESREE

— Listed equity securities - iR AES 335,569 = = 335,569
— Listed debt securities - FERES - 4,979,688 - 4,979,688
— Unlisted debt securities - JELETHERES = 50,931 = 50,931

Financial assets designated as EERATET A NER
fair value through profit or loss K © @& E

— Unlisted fund investments - FEMESKE - 355,701 51,701 407,402

— Unlisted convertible - JEEma Bk
promissory note AHEE = = 115,184 115,184
— Financial products - RREmM - 6,252,234 1,172,317 7,424,551
Derivative financial instruments  $T4 & E T A = 122,001 = 122,001
335,569 11,760,555 1,339,202 13,435,326
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. SHREABEE®)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) tMEEREBNATEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEGEN T A(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NIEEZR(E)
Liabilities measured at fair value: BEAFEFENAE :
As at 31 December 2017 R-E—tF+=-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

RRAUT&ENATENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
i BX BERETE
TS HRE TEEZH HE2Y
(E14R) (F24R) (E34R) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THT THET
Debt securities in issue BEEATETA
designated as fair value BRNEETEHR
through profit and loss BH - (8,267,555) (2.211,321)  (10,478,876)
Financial liabilities held for RIEEESRAE
trading
— Listed equity securities - FTBRAES (6,634) = = (6,634)
— Listed debt securities - EERKES - (1,573,357) = (1,573,357)
Financial liabilities designated BERAFERTA
as fair value through BEERNEmas
profit or loss
— Financial products - RESR - (7,428,785) - (7,428,785)
Derivative financial instruments 74 £ @ TR = (27,722) = (27,722)

(6.634) (17,297,419) (2.211,321) (19,515,374)
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. SHRRABERE®)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) TREEREENAFEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BATFEGENLETA(E)
NEEZER(E)
BAFEFENEE : (8)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XRE+ZHA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

KANTEENRFEEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 3)
VIR EK?&)‘%
minwmE BR2%
(14 EWESY (F38) mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHET
Debt securities in issue BERATFERTTA
designated as at fair value BRNEETES
through profit and loss kA = (4,475,214) (1,172,317) (5,647,531)
Financial liabilities held for BEEESMER
trading
— Listed equity securities - FRAES (66) - - (66)
— Listed debt securities - FTEBES - (1,136,096) - (1,136,096)
Financial liabilities designated BERATETA
as fair value through BareraE
profit or loss
— Financial products - S RIEM - (2,349,358) = (2,349,358)
Derivative financial TESRIA
instruments = (130,083) = (130,083)
(66) (8,090,751) (1,172,317) (9,263,134)
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(a)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, or broker and those prices
represent actual and reqularly occurring market transactions on an
arm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets
and financial liabilities held by the Group is the current bid price and
current ask price.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter) are determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little
as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs used
in the valuation for financial instruments are observable, the
financial instruments are included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable
market data, the financial instrument is included in Level 3.

Except the conversion of the Convertible Preference Shares (Level 2)
into ordinary shares of the Investee listed on the Stock Exchange
(Level 1) in May 2014, there was no transfer of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. SHRRABERE®)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) EMEEREBNALEAE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BATFEGENLETA(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZER(E)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 ) HF3e&@mTE
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial TEREJINEEZE-ZT—LFR=ZF
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. —ARNFE+-_A=+—HLFE"

FIMEMIANES -

Level 3 financial assets FIBEREE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—t&t+=-A=+—H
LEE
Unlisted
convertible
Unlisted debt promissory  Unlisted fund Financial
securities note investments product
(Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20)
¥Em
¥LEm ARRAR ¥LEm
B%E =B HEeRE SRER
% (MtzE 20) (B £ 20) (H&E20) (BaE20) #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THERT TAERT TET
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—tF
—H—H - 115,184 51,701 1,172,317 1,339,202
Purchases BE - - - 238,204 238,204
Disposal & - (76,081) (57,281) - (133,362)
Transfer out to Level 2~ EHEF 24 - - - - -
Receipt on maturity AR HA B Uk 2k - = = - -
Accrued interest income  EETFI S UL - 1,540 - - 1,540
Receipt of interest WERF] S A
income - (1,546) - - (1,546)
Net (loss)/gain REZAER
recognised in K (E18),/
profit or loss Yoz S - (39,097) 5,580 208,590 175,073
At 31 December 2017 —T—+F
t—AH
=+—H - - - 1,619,111 1,619,111
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. SHREABEE®)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) TREEREENAFEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEGEN T A(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NIEEZR(E)
()  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) € FE3RermITEE)
Level 3 financial assets (continued) FIPERMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—XR"E+=-A=+—H
IHEE
Unlisted
convertible
Unlisted debt promissory  Unlisted fund Financial
securities note investments product
(Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20)
LM
LM AR ELS il
BEESR ZE HeRE EREM
(FiE 20) (Fi3E 20) (P 5% 20) (Pt 5% 20) w@at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THBT FHT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2016 RZZT—RF
—A—H 45,400 152,756 120,141 - 318,297
Purchases EE = = = 1,172,317 1,172,317
Transferout to Level 2~ EBHZEE 24 = = (149,352) = (149,352)
Receipt on maturity B RS Uk (47,170) = = = (47,170)
Accrued interest income  FEETFI B ULA 445 3,094 = = 3,539
Receipt of interest WERF 2 A
income (445) (4,638) = = (5,083)
Net (loss)/gain RIER AR
recognised in ) (&1]),/
profit or loss Yoz %R 1,770 (36,028) 80,912 = 46,654
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
T=—AH
=+—H - 115,184 51,701 1,172,317 1,339,202
Level 3 financial liabilities Fi3ghcmBAaE
2017
—E2—tF
HK$'000
Debt securities in issue BERITEXFRS FET
At 1 January R—A—H 1,172,317 =
Issuance B 21T 830,414 1,172,317
Net loss recognised in profit or loss RIEEERNEEFHE 208,590 =
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H 2,211,321 1,172,317
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. SHRRABERE®)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) EMEEREBNALEAE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BATFEGENLETA(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZER(E)
()  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) © FE3XemITEE)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the TXAREMIAR-ZE—LFR
valuation of financial instruments as at 31 December 2017 and 2016: ZE-R~"F+ZA=+—HHEE

MBREZERZEHE :

31 December 2017 —E2—tF+=HA=t+—H
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of
technique unobservable input Average the fair value to the input
fEERM BEREZEEZH T DAV EHZENERE
Financial products Market Approach  Pricing multiples of market 10% increase or decrease in the
comparable companies used underlying stock price, the fair value
to determine the estimated would be increased by HK$138.1
equity value of the Project million or decreased by HK$138.1
Company: million, respectively.
TREMR [BE 7S RARETEE ARMGER MERARR(E T akRIR 1000 © 2
EEENTSIELERA FEHDFIE 1381 B BB
AH)EBEE TR 1381 BEE T ©
— Price to revenue multiple 8.8
- T
— Price to book multiple 2.5
- HERE
— Price to earnings 56.6
multiple
- A%
— Enterprise value to sales 9.7
- CEEERHER
5
Financial products Recent transaction  N/A N/A  NJA
price
T REm MR 5ER  TER TEMR TEA
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. SHREABEE®)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) tMEEREBNATEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEGEN T A(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NIEEZR(E)
()  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) € FE3RermITEE)
31 December 2017 (continued) —2—+tE+=-A=+—H#)
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of
technique unobservable input Average the fair value to the input
fRER M BEARLBESY ¥ AVEHSHNBRE
Debt securities in Market approach Pricing multiples of market 10% increase or decrease in the
issue comparable companies used underlying stock price, the fair value
to determine the estimated would be increased by HK$138.1
equity value of the Project million or decreased by HK$138.1
Company: million, respectively.
BEITERKRES WHA ARETEIEE A alfhast MR E K 1000 - &
BEBENTISAEL FERDRIE I 138.1 BEE
RARINEBEE TSR A 1381 BB ©
— Price to revenue multiple 8.8
- TR
— Price to book multiple 2.5
— AR
— Price to earnings 56.6
multiple
- ma=x
— Enterprise value to sales 9.7
- REERFEE
FELL %
Debt securities in Recent N/A N/A  NJA
issue transaction
price
BEETERKES OHXSER TEAR TER TEA
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. SHRRABERE®)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) EMEEREBNALEAE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BATFEGENLETA(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZER(E)
()  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) © FE3XemITEE)
31 December 2016 —E-Xx"Fgt+=-A=+—H
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of
technique unobservable input Average  the fair value to the input
AR BREZEEZY T RVEHZ2ENSRE
Unlisted convertible  Binomial pricing Pricing multiples of market 10% increase or decrease in the
promissory note model comparable companies used underlying stock price, the fair
to determine the estimated value would be increased by
equity value of the Project HK$6.9 million or decreased by
Company: HK$6.9 million, respectively.
FELmAAkA  —HEAFTEEN —BEATEEARRE MR E A& 10% - A
HEE EIE B QAL REE FERDRIEM6IBEET
ENTISTALRAR AL 69 EBHTT -
B (BB
— Price to revenue multiple 0.73
- X
— Price to book multiple 2.45
- HARX
— Price to earnings 13.84
multiple
- A%
Unlisted fund Recent N/A N/A  N/A
investments transaction
price
FETEESKRE HR5E NiE A TER TEH
Financial products  Recent N/A N/A  N/A
transaction price
T RUE M MR 58 N TER TER
Debt securities in Recent N/A N/A  N/A
issue transaction price
BEITERKES OHXH5E TEMA TER TEA
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42.

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management

The Group's objectives for managing capital, which represent a broader
concept than the "equity” on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

. to comply with the capital requirements under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its subsidiaries
which are licensed corporations;

° to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders;

. to support the Group's stability and growth; and

° to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed subsidiary's
management based on the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules. The required information is filed with the SFC on a timely basis. The
SFC requires each licensed corporation to maintain a level of required liquid
capital which is the higher of the floor requirement ranging from HK$0.1
million to HK$15 million and 5% of the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities
and clients' margin. All licensed corporations within the Group complied
with their required liquid capital during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

A subsidiary of the Group is a member of the Hong Kong Confederation of
Insurance Brokers and is required to maintain a minimum net asset value
of HK$0.1 million at all times. Another subsidiary of the Group is a
Registered Fund Management Company registered with the Monetary
Authority of Singapore and is required to maintain a minimum base capital
requirement of SG$250,000 at all times.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.
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43. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
Continuous Net Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivable and trade
payables with HKSCC and it intends to settle on a net basis as accounts
receivable from or accounts payable to the Stock Exchange. The net amount
of CNS money obligations receivable or payable with HKSCC and the
guarantee fund placed in HKSCC do not meet the criteria for offsetting in
the financial statements and the Group does not intend to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Gross
amount of
recognised

Gross financial
amount of (assets)/
recognised liabilities

financial  offset in the
assets/ financial

(liabilities) statements
ERZSH EHEEER
BE/(BE) 2B(BE)/
k] BELE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AR

As at 31 December 2017 R=—B—+ &

43.

BEHEMEERSBMARE

AEEBAHE AR TN K i
BEEGENRKBEFEIN(FEFER
W) FE R B 12X 5 FE AN ROR > M BEIROF
B AR B WSk B A B SR P R A
H - BEBGEEOREFREIWE LR
HIEMEREVFRE R F R BB EE AR
BESITHFERUBREAEHENER
% AKEIRIFRELEEEERS
3

’
o

Net

amounts of Related

financial  amounts not
liabilities set off in

reflected in the statement

the financial of financial

statements position

RBBHR HARARMBE
2INER RRREHED

REFE BHEHE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TR

+=A=+—H
CNS money obligation SEFERUE
receivable L B 895,209 (895,209) - - -
CNS money obligation FEFERUE
payable 8 (1,074870) 895,209 (179,661) - (179,661)
As at 31 December 2016 R=F— K F
+=HB=+-H
CNS money obligation BFEFERUE
receivable U iR 1,091,696 (1,091,696) = - -
CNS money obligation FEFER U E
payable B (1,121,660) 1,091,696 (29,964) - (29,964)

The "net amounts of financial liabilities reflected in the financial
statements”, as set out above, is included in "accounts receivable and
accounts payable arising from brokerage — the Stock Exchange and other
clearing houses" in notes 18 and 24 respectively.

EXFAEN TR B RERRENSEE
EFE] DR eRERE 8R4 &
ACEE A RO R OR S FE N FR0R — B X FA
NEMGEER] -
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44. Event after reporting period

On 24 January, 2018, the Company, Guotai Juan Holdings Limited (the
“Vendor" and a substantial shareholder of the Company) and Guotai Juan
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (the "Sole Placing Agent") entered into a
placing and subscription agreement. Pursuant to the agreement (i) the
Vendor conditionally agreed to place, through the Sole Placing Agent on a
best effort basis, a maximum of 700,000,000 existing shares held by the
Vendor at the placing price of HK$2.85 per placing share; and (ii) the
Vendor conditionally agreed to subscribe for such number of the shares
equal to the number of the shares which were placed by the Sole Placing
Agent at the subscription price of HK$2.85 per placing share. Subsequently
a total of 700,000,000 placing shares beneficially owned by the Vendor
were placed at HK$2.85 per placing share to the placees. On 6 February
2018, 700,000,000 subscription shares were issued and allotted to the
Vendor at HK$2.85 per subscription share. The net proceeds from the
subscription, after deducting all related expenses which were being borne
by the Company, were approximately HK$1,987 million.
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45, KRPQ T B AR R T

45. Statement of financial position of the Company

BRAAR QR HE AR M BARR R
BERT

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2017
—E—+F

HK$'000
FTET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BEH B A A 7,632,698 7,656,627
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{HFIE ~ 2 & N H b fE UL ZUE 9,338 8,331
Due from subsidiaries JEUR B B A B3R I8 9,411,545 6,727,831
Cash and cash equivalents RENRREEEY 40,596 22,482
Total current assets REBEEAR 9,461,479 6,758,644
Current liabilities RBAE
Accounts payable FEATFRIE = (2,864)
Accrued liabilities EErBE (17,991) (1,993)
Debt securities in issue BEEITHMERES (8.304,424) (5.823,241)

— At amortised cost — 1R A A (5,301,400) (175,710)

— Designated as fair value through - EBERATEFABR

profit or loss (3,003,024) (5,647,531)

Total current liabilities REBAEHEE (8.322,415) (5.828,098)
Net current assets nEEEFE 1,139,064 930,546
Total assets less current liabilities and BEERABEBREEFEE

net assets 8,771,762 8,587,173
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Il

45, Statement of financial position of the Company 45. KA T MEARREK @)

(continued)

2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Equity EE
Share capital A& A 6,115,076 6,051,041
Share-based compensation reserve LAR 0 B ERE B R
— Share option reserve (Note) — BERRREGEE (B EE) 40,769 48,266
— Share award reserve (Note) — R BB RE A (B EE) 24,204 40,636
Shares held under the share award f& 10 B2 EhET &I T8 T 5B MR (D
scheme (Note) (B=E) (181,281) (214,323)
Retained profits (Note) 1R B8 % A (BT ) 426,200 314,868
Equity attributable to holders of LB E ARGERS
ordinary shares 6,424,968 6,240,488
Equity attributable to holders of HiigEm TERB ABELER
other equity instrument 2,346,794 2,346,685
Total equity B 8,771,762 8,587,173
Dr. YIM Fung Ms. QI Haiying
Bt WEBRLZL
Director Director
EF EF

270 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2017



Notes to Financial Statements

BT R M ot

31 December 2017
—T—+F+ZR=+—H

45. Statement of financial position of the Company 45 RATMERRE @)

(continued)

Note: BisE
AAREFEZMAT

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

Share held
Share under the
option  Share award share award Retained
reserve reserve scheme profits
4% R B
R i) sHEIET
3] REFEE ARG RE A et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THAT FHT FAET FHT
At 1 January 2016 NZZE—RFEF—A—H 44,469 50,948 (199,643) 496,591 392,365
Total comprehensive income for FALEKELE
the year - - - 322,620 322,620
Perpetual securities distribution KEEH DK = = - (56,740) (56,740)
Recognition of equity-settled TR A 2 AT B AR D
share-based payments RERERT
(Notes 32 and 33) (Pt £ 32 % 33) 14,885 81,272 - (3,216) 92,941
Purchases of shares held under BERERGN ZE
the share award scheme FrEIRE ARG
(Notes 33 and 34) (B 5E33 K2 34) - - (68.971) - (68,971)
Vesting of shares for the share Btn 2B =t 2157 B AR (D
award scheme (Notes 33 and 34) (M 5E 33 K2 34) - (91,584) 54,291 37,293 =
Shares issued upon exercise of BB AR RE AT 2178 T 17(E
share options under the share B ZATRAR (D
option scheme (Note 32) (PfsE32) (11,088) - - - (11,088)
Final dividend paid for 2015 IR ZT-RFRE
(Note 10) iz 8 (FtzE10) - = = (275,321) (275,321)
Interim dividend paid for 2016 TR ZT—RFEHE
(Note 10) iz 2 (FzE10) - = = (206,359) (206,359)
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Il

ARABTHBAR R T (#)

45. Statement of financial position of the Company 45.

(continued)
Note: ks
Share held
Share under the
option  Share award share award Retained
reserve reserve scheme profits
15 R B
BRE 47 sTEIET
3] RBFEE BENRG RE A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT THT THT FHET FHT
As at 31 December 2016 and RZT—RF
1 January 2017 +ZA=+—H8k
—Z—t%—-AR—H 48,266 40,636 (214,323) 314,868 189,447
HKFRS 9 adjustment on retained REBER BN KR AR
profits LIS ERE RN
R = - = (40) (40)
Total comprehensive income for FRNEHERZLE
the year - - - 863,147 863,147
Perpetual securities distribution KB BAE DK - - - (105,162) (105,162)
Recognition of equity-settled R AR ST H ARG
share-based payments AEBHMARK
(Notes 32 and 33) (Pf ¥ 32 %2 33) 7,611 70,801 - - 78,412
Purchases of shares held under BERER EE
the share award scheme TER ARG
(Notes 33 and 34) (P5E 33 %2 34) - - (72,786) - (72,786)
Vesting of shares for the share kRl
award scheme (Notes 33 and 34) (P5E 33 %2 34) - (87,233) 105,828 (23,430) (4,835)
Shares issued upon exercise of BB AERT &I T T1E
share options under the share BREMEITRRN
option scheme (Note 32) (Pf¥zE32) (15,108) - - - (15,108)
Final dividend paid for 2016 IRHZT-R"FERH
(Note 10) RS (B EE10) - - - (311,380) (311.380)
Interim dividend paid for 2017 YR ZE—LFhH
(Note 10) RS (B EE10) - - - (311,803) (311,803)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=-A=+—H 40,769 24,204 (181,281) 426,200 309,892
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